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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Honorable Robert Jackson, Mayor 
And Members of the Board of Aldermen 
Town of Slaughter 
PO Box 293 
Slaughter, LA 70777 

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of 
Slaughter, Louisiana as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic linancial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. 

Management's Responsibility' for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

My responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted 
my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that I plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 



assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, I express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
my audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
flind, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Slaughter, as of June 30, 2021, 
and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis, the budgetary comparison information, the schedule of the 
Town's proportionate share of net pension liability, and the schedule of the Town's contributions be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in 
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. I have applied certain limited procedures 
to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to my inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge I obtained during my 
audit of the basic financial statements. I do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements. The individual fund financial statements 
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. 

The schedule of compensation paid to board members, the schedule of compensation, benefits, and 
other payments to the agency head, and the justice flinding schedule-collecting/disbursing entit}-' are 



the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In my opinion, the information is fairly 
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic fmancial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, I have also issued my report dated February 22, 
2022 on my consideration of the Town of Slaughter's internal control over fmancial reporting and on 
my tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of my testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
the Town of Slaughter's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Minda Rayboum CPA 
Franklinton, LA 
Febru^y 22, 2022 
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'Town of Slaughter, Louisiana 
June 30, 2021 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

The XowTi of Slaughter, Louisiana (the Town) is pleased to present its Annual Financial Statements 
developed in compliance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic 
Financial Statements - Management's Discussion and Analysis - For State and Local Governments (GASB 
34), as amended. The amendment of GASB 34, including the adoption of GASB Statement No. 63, 
Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, 
and applicable standards are more fully described in Footnote 1 - Summaiy of Significant Accounting 
Policies. 

The Town's discussion and analysis is designed to (a) assist the reader in focusing on significant tinancial 
issues, (b) provide an ovendew of the Town's financial activity, (c) identify changes in the Town's 
financial position, (d) identify any significant variations from the Towm's financial plan, and (e) identify 
individual fund issues or concerns. 

Since Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to foci« on the current year's 
activities, resulting changes, and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction with the Town's 
financial statements. 

Financial Highlights 

• As of June 30, 2021, the Towm's assets exceeded its liabilities by $2,045,217 (net position). The 
town reported a balance of $ 137,052 in total unrestricted net assets. 

• The most significant ongoing continuing revenue sources for governmental activities of the Town 
consisted of $180,265 in sales taxes, $68,057 in francliise taxes, $40,332 in property taxes, and 
$48,352 in occupational license fees. Charges for business-type activities of the utility fimd were 
$390,266 in gas charges and $375,705 in water charges. 

• The Town's significant expenditures in the current year for governmental activities included 
$349,919 for general governmental activities, $344,774 for police protection, $109,625 for fire 
protection, and $72,100 for street and sidewalk expenditures. Expenses for business-type activities 
of the gas and water departments totaled $537,717. 

• For the year ended June 30, 2021 the Town's bonds payable in long term debt was $1,103,490 
related to the Water Revenue Bonds payable. The Town paid principal payments in the amount of 
$77,000. 

• The Town entered into a capital lease agreement for the purchase of a pumper truck in the prior 
year. The amount of the lease payable is $59,199. The Town recognized principal payments in the 
amount of $7,207. 



'Town of Slaughter, Louisiana 
June 30, 2021 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Overview of the Annual Financial Report 

The linancial statement focus is on both the Town as a whole and on the major individual funds. Both 
perspectives, govemment-wide and major funds, allow the user to address relevant questions, broaden a 
basis for comparison, and enhance the Towm's accountability. The statements then proceed to provide an 
increasingly detailed look at specific financial activities. 

The MD&A is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town's basic financial statements, which consist 
of three components: (1) govemment-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes 
to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary infonnation in addition to the 
basic financial statements. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The govemment-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of 
the Town's finances in a maimer similar to a private-sector business. Governmental activities, which 
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, and business-t5q)e activities, which 
rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support are presented in separate columns along with 
a total column for the primary government. If the Town determines that presentation of a component 
unit (which are other governmental units for which the Town can exercise significant influences or for 
which the Primary Government financial statements would be misleading if component unit 
infomiation is not presented) is necessary to allow- the reader to determine the relationship of the 
component unit and primary government, the component unit information is presented in a separate 
column of the financial statements or in a separate footnote. For the current fiscal year, the Town of 
Slaughter has no component units. 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on the Town's assets and liabilities using the 
accrual basis of accounting, in a manner similar to the accounting used by private business enterprises. 
The difference between the assets and liabilities is reported as net position. Over time, the increases or 
decreases in net position and changes in the components of net position may serve as a useful indicator 
of whether the financial position of the Towm is improving or deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Town's net position changed during 
the most recent fiscal year, focusing on both the gross and net costs of various activities, both 
governmental and business-type, that are supported by the Towm's general tax and other revenues. 
This is intended to summarize and simplify the reader's analysis of the cost of various governmental 
services and'or subsidy to various business-type activities. 

In both of the govemment-wdde financial statements, the Town's activities are divided into two types: 

Governmental activities - Most of the Town's basic services are reported here, including general 
government, public safety, streets and sanitation, health and welfare, and culture and recreation. These 
activities are financed primarily by property taxes, franchise taxes, sales taxes, fire insumnce rebates, and 
fines. 

Business-type activities - The Town charges a fee to customers to help it cover all of the cost of the 
services provided. The Town's water, natural gas, and sewer utility systems are reported in this section. 

10 



'Town of Slaughter, Louisiana 
June 30, 2021 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

As a general rule the effeet of interfund activity has been eliminated from the goveniment-wide linaneial 
statements. Exceptions to this general rule, if applicable, are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges 
between the government's enterprise operations. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs 
and progrmn revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 

Fund Financial Statements 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town, like other state and local governments, uses 
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related and legal requirements. 
The Town uses two categories of funds to account for financial transactions; governmental funds and 
proprietary funds. Traditional users of governmental financial statements will find the fiind financial 
statements presentation more familiar. 

Governmental funck are used to account for most of the Town's basic services. However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on how money 
flows into and out of those funds and the balances that are left at year-end that are available for 
spending. These funds are reported using the modified accrual basis of accounting, which measures 
cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund 
statements provide a detailed short-term view of the Town's general government operations and the 
basic sen-ices it provides. Governmental fund information helps to determine whether there are more 
or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the TOVTI'S programs. 

Proprietary funds account for water, natural gas, and sewer utility sendees provided by the Town to its 
customers. Proprietary funds statements provide the same type of information as the govermnent-wide 
financial statements, but the frind presentation provides more detail. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the govemment-wide financial 
statements, there are differences in the information presented for government funds and for 
governmental activities in the govemment-wide financial statements. Review of these differences 
provides the reader of the financial statement's insight on the long-term impact of the Town's more 
immediate decisions on the current use of financial resources. Both the governmental fund Balance 
Sheet and the gov*emmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
provide a reconciliation to facilitate tliis comparison between governmental funds and governmental 
activities. 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the govemment-wide and fund financial statements. 

11 



'Town of Slaughter, Louisiana 
June 30, 2021 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's linancial 
position. The follovving table provides a summary of the Town's net position for the current year as 
compared to the prior year. 

Town of Slai^hter's Net Position 

Goverainental Activities Business-type Activities Totals 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 
ASSETS 

Cmieiit aiid other assets $ 476,509 $ 433.877 S 247.688 $ 302.399 $ 724.197 S 736.276 
Restricted assets 147,275 189.828 261.271 233,568 408,545 423.396 
Capital assets, net 1,400,078 1.520.887 1.334.734 1,407,800 2,734,812 2.928.687 

Total Assets 2,023,861 2,144,592 1,843,693 1.943,767 3,867,554 4,088,359 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 39.290 26,948 30,233 71.445 6.602.366 7,017,046 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities 56,792 87,952 95,907 436.303 152.700 524,255 
Long-term liabilities 101.853 157,148 1.532.909 1,451.341 1.634.762 1,608,489 

Total Liabilities 158,645 245.100 1.628.816 1,887,644 1,787,462 2.132.744 

DEFERRED INFLOWS 58,348 2,263 46.051 5,008 104,399 7.271 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 1.348.375 1.461.688 151.244 147.311 1.499.619 1.608.999 
Restricted 147,275 189.828 261,271 233,568 408,545 423,396 

Unrestrkted 350.508 272,661 (213,456) (258.319) 137.052 14,342 

Total Net Position $ 1,846,158 S 1,924,177 S 199,059 $ 122,560 $ 2,045,217 S 2,046,737 

Approximately seventy-three percent of the Town's net position reflects its investment in capital assets 
(land, buildings, equipment, infrastructure, and improvements, net of depreciation and the remaining debt 
held on those assets). These capital assets are used to provide services to citizens and do not represent 
resources available for future spending. Although the Town's investment in its capital assets is reported net 
of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other 
sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

Approximately twenty percent of the Town's net position represents resources that are subject to external 
restriction on how they may be used. The Town's restricted net position primarily consists of fund 
balances restricted by legislation, capital projects funds, grants, and other specified purposes in 
governmental activities and cash reseiv-es required for customer deposits in business-type activities net of 
corresponding liabilities. The Town's unrestricted net position was seven percent of the Town's net 
position. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town was able to report positive balances in all three categories of 
net position, for governmental activities. The mirestricted net position for business-type activities had a 
deficient of $213,456 due to the implementation of GASB 68 and 71. The Town's activities decreased its 

12 



'Town of Slaughter, Louisiana 
June 30, 2021 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

total net position by SI,520, with governmental activities decreasing net position by $78,019 and business-
type activities increasing net position by $76,499. 

In order to further understand what makes up the changes in net position, the table following provides a 
summary of the results of the Town's activities for the current year as compared to the prior year. An 
analysis of the primary sources of these changes follows the table. 

REVENUES 
Prog'am Revenues 

Ciiarges for services 
Grants and Contifeutions: 

Operating 
Capital 

General Reveni^s: 

Licenses and permits 
Franchise fees 
Taxes 
Oil-Behalf payments 
Interest earned 
Otlier revenues 

Total Revenues 

EXPENSES 
General goveniinent 
Public safety-Police 
Public safety-Fire 
Streets and Sklewalks 
Water 
Gas 

Total E:q}enses 

Change in Net Position 

Before Transfers 

Capital Transfers 

Transfers in/(out) 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position, beginning of year - restated 

Net Position, end of year 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

GoveiumeDtal Activities Business Type Activities Totals 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

S 120.640 $ 187.519 S 765,972 S 755,543 S 886,611 $ 943.062 

30,700 2,482 2.928 32.858 33.628 35,340 
113,000 215,679 - - 113.000 215,679 

48.352 55.639 _ _ 48,352 55.639 
68.057 64.980 - - 68,057 64.980 

220.597 198.508 - - 220,597 198.508 
17,150 - - 17.150 -

304 685 317 291 620 976 
17,393 17,494 - - 17,393 17,494 

636,192 742,986 769,216 788.692 1,405.408 1,531,678 

349.919 389.1.32 349,919 389.132 
344,774 286,563 344,774 286,563 

112,280 138,558 112.280 138,558 
72,100 88,145 72.100 88,145 

- - 328.871 347,050 328.871 347.050 
- - 208.846 236,342 208,846 236,342 

879.073 902.398 537,717 583,392 1,416,790 1,485,790 

(242.882) (159.412) 231,499 205,300 (11,382) 45.888 

9,862 9,862 - . 9.862 9,862 

155.000 208.000 (155,000) (171,000) - 37.000 

(78,019) 58,450 76.499 34.300 (1.520) 92,750 

1.924,177 1,865,727 122,560 88,260 2,046,737 1,953,987 

S 1,846,158 $ 1,924,177 S 199.059 S 122,560 2,045.217 S 2.046,737 

13 



'Town of Slaughter, Louisiana 
June 30, 2021 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Governmental Activities 

The Town's governmental net position decreased $78,019 as compared to the prior fiscal year change in net 
position of $58,450. The most significant factor in this change in net position is a decrease in revenues of 
$106,794 and a decrease of expenditures of $23,325. 

Charges for services decreased by thirty-six percent or $66,879. Capital grant revenues decreased forty-
eight percent or $102,679. Operating grants increased $28,218. Taxes increased $22,089 or eleven 
percent. Franchise fees increased five percent or $3,077. 

General government expenditures decreased ten percent or $39,213. This was due to a decrease in 
professional services. The police department expenditures increased twenty percent or $58,211. This was 
due to an increase in retirement expense related to GASB 68, insurance, and supplies. The fire department 
expenditures decreased nineteen percent or $26,278. This was due to a decrease in salaries. The 
expenditures in the streets and sidewalk funds decreased eighteen percent or $16,045. This was due to a 
decrease in street expenses and supplies. 

The TOWTI recorded a capital transfer of $9,862 as revenue. The Town purchased a pumper truck in 2018. 
The funds for the truck were received by the Slaughter Volunteer Fire Department, Inc. through a 
Peimington Foundation grant for $350,000. The Parish-Wide East Feliciana Fire Protection District 
(Slaughter station funds) paid $52,924 towards the cost of the truck. The Town entered into a capital lease 
agreement as the lessor for the remainder of the balance ($80,000). 

Business-Type Activities 

Charges for water and gas sales decreased one percent or $10,429. Expenditwes for the water department 
increased $43,733 or thirteen percent. Expenditures for the water department decreased $18,179 or five 
percent. Gas expenditures deereased $27,496 or twelve percent. Water expenditures decreased due to a 
decrease in materials, supplies, and repairs in maintenance. Gas expenditures decreased due to a decrease 
in the retirement expense. This is due to GASB 68. 

Fund Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonsh^ate complimice with finance-
related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds 

The focus of the Town's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and 
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Town's financing 
requirements. In particular, unreser\'ed fund balance may service as a useful indicator of the Town's net 

14 



'Town of Slaughter, Louisiana 
June 30, 2021 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

resources available for spending at the end of the year. At the end of the year, the Town's governmental 
funds reported combining ending fund balances of $574,487. Fund balance was as follows: restricted for 
streets and sidewalks $142,048, assigned for police protection $33,858, and unassigned $398,581. 

This represents an increase of $31,527 on all governmental funds from the prior year's ending fund 
balance. The General Fund is the chief operating fiind of the Town. At the end of the current year, the 
total fund balance for the General Fund was $432,439. All funds had a positive ending fiind balance. 

Proprietary Funds 

The Town's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide 
finmicial statements, but in more detail. 

Governmental Fund Budgetary Highlights 

There were no other funds that had actual revenues and other sources under budgeted resulting in 
unfavorable v'ariances greater than five percent in accordance with the Local Government Budget Act for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. The Town's special revenue fund expenditures and other uses w^ere 
over budget resulting in unfavorable variances greater than five percent. 

Revenues in in the general fund were over budget by 3%. Revenues in the street and sidewalks fund w'ere 
under budget by 59%.The expenditures in the general fund were over budget by 2%. The expenditures in 
the streets and sidewalks fund were over budget by 47%. 

15 



'Town of Slaughter, Louisiana 
June 30, 2021 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Capital Assets 

The Town's capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities for June 30, 2021 amounts to 
$2,734,812 (net of depreciation). The following table provides a summary of the Town's capital assets (net 
of depreciation) at the end of the current year as compared to the prior year. 

Summary of Capital Assets 
(net of depreciation) 

Governmental 
Activities 

2021 2020 
Land S 
Building 
Equipment and Vehicles 
Infrastructure 

Net Capital Assets 

174,189 
303,977 
773,967 
147,945 

174, 
316, 
859, 
170, 

189 
922 
684 
092 

$ 1,400,078 $ 1,520,887 

Business-Type 
Activities 

2021 2020 

Water Distribution System 
Gas Distribution System 
Equipment and Vehicles 

Net Capital Assets 

S 1,282,408 
43,372 
8,954 

1,334,734 

S 1,361,470 
32,004 
14,326 

1,407, 

Total Net Capital Assets $2,734,812 S 2,928,687 

Significant capital additions for the year ending June 30, 2021, consisted a drilling rig for $15,000, a new 
computer system for $30,921, radios for the fire department for $20,164, a colorimeter for $1,527 for the 
water system, and a 2" bore on a gas main for $11,921. Depreciation expense for governmental fun(fe was 
$183,019 and for enterprise tunds was $90,210. 

16 



'Town of Slaughter, Louisiana 
June 30, 2021 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Long-Term Debt 

At June 30, 2021, the Town had total debt outstanding of $1,242,689 Of this total, $87,496 is due within 
one year and $1,155,193 is due within greater than one year. The following table provides a summary of 
the Town's outstanding debt at the end of the current year as compared to the prior year. 

Govemiental Activities Business-type Activtties Total 
Current Long Term Current Long Term Long-Term 
Portion Portion Total Portion Portion Total Ob nations 

Capital Leases 7,496 51,703 59,199 - - - 59,199 
Revenue Bonds - - - 80.000 1,103,490 1,183,490 1,183,490 
Ending Balance 7,496 51,703 59,199 80,000 1,103,490 1,183,490 1,242,689 

Other Factors Affecting the Town 

The Town of Slaughter's management approach is conser\'ative. When possible, the Mayor and Aldermen 
attempt to provide services for the Town based on existing revenues and to borrow for long-term projeets 
only when absolutely necessary, actively pursuing grant funds to minimize the cost of major projects. The 
Town is facing increasing costs and has an obligation to its citizens to maintain or increase the level of 
services being provided. 

Contacting the Town's Financial Management 

This financial report is designed to provide the Town's citizens, taxpayers, creditors and investors with a 
general overview of the Town's finances and show* the Town's accountability for the money it receives. If 
you have questions regarding this report or need additional information, contact the Town at 337 Church 
St., Slaughter, LA 70777. The phone number for the Town is (225) 654-4278. 

17 
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STATEMENT A 
TDWN OF SLAUGHTER, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF NET POSTTON 
June 30, 2021 

The accompanying notes are an iiite^al part of the financial statements. 

19 

Governmental Business-t).'pe 
ASSETS Activities Acth'ities Total 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 206,560 $ 210,764 $ 417,324 
Investments 43,484 - 43,484 
Receivables, net 51,055 36,924 87,979 
Due from other funds 175,409 - 175,409 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 147,275 261,271 408,545 

Capital assets, net of depreciation 1,400,078 1,334,734 2,734.812 

T otal Assets 2,023,861 1,843,693 3,867,554 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 39,290 30.233 69.523 

LIABILITIES 

Accoiuits payable 20,916 13,901 34,817 
Accrued liabilities - - -

Accraed wages 4,992 2,006 6,998 
Pa^ToU related payables 23,388 - 23,388 
Due to other funds - 175,409 175,409 

Payables fiom restricted assets: -
Customer deposits - 72,505 72,505 

Lease Payable: -

Due witliiEi one year 7,496 - 7,496 
Long-tenn portion 51,703 - 51,703 

Bonds payable: -
Due within one year - 80,000 80,000 
Long-term poilion - 1,103,490 1,103,490 

Net pension liability 50,150 181,505 231,655 

T otal Liabilities 158,645 1,628,816 1,787,462 

DEFFERRED INFLOWS RESOURCES 58,348 46,051 104,399 

NET POSITION 

Net investment in capital assets 1,348,375 151,244 1,499,619 
Restricted for: 

Debt Service - 188,766 188,766 
Meter Deposits - 72,505 72,505 
Streets and sidewalks 147,275 - 147,275 

Unrestrkted 350,508 (213,456) 137,052 

Total Net Position $ 1,846,158 $ 199,059 $ 2,045,217 
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STATEMENT C 
TOWN OF SLAUGHTER, LOUISIANA 

BALANCE SHEET 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2021 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables, net: 

Franchise fees 
Property taxes 
Sales taxes 
Beer taxes 

Due from other governmental agencies 
Due from other hinds 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Accrued Wages 
PayroD liabilities 
Due to other hinds 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances 
Nonspendable 
Restricted for: 

Streets and sidewalks 
Assigned for: 

Public safety: police 
Public satet\': fire 

Unassigped 

T otal Fund Balances 

TOTAL LIABILmES AND FUND BALANCES 

General 
Street and 
Sidewalks 

206,560 S 
43,484 

18,189 

18,506 

194.420 

481.159 

20,340 

4,992 
23.388 

48.720 

33,858 

398.581 

14.361 

147.275 

.61.636 

576 

19.011 

19.587 

142.048 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

206.560 
43,484 

18,189 

32,867 

194,420 

147,275 

642.795 

20,916 

4,992 
23,388 
19.011 

68,301 

142,041 

33,851 

398.58] 

432.439 142.048 574.487 

$ 481.159 S 161,636 $ 642,795 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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STATEMENT D 
TO™ OF SLAUGHTER, LOUTSL4NA 

BALANCE SHEET 
REC0NCILL4110N OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 

TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2021 

Total Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 574.487 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net 
Position are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current 
fmancial resources and, therefore, are not reported in die 
Govermnental Funds Balance Sheets. This is the capital assets, 
nets of accumulated depreciation, reported on the Statement of 
Net Position. 1,400,078 

Long-term liabilities of governmental activities do not require 
the use of current fmancial resources and, therefore, are not 
reported in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. These are 
the long-term liabihties of the governmental activities: 

Lease Payable (59,199) 
Net pension liability (50,150) 

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions 
are appMcable to future periods and, therefore, are not reported 
in the governmental fiinds. 

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 39,290 
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (58,348) 

Total Net Position of Govermnental Activities $ 1,846,158 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the fmancial statements. 
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STATEMENT E 

TOW^ OF SLAUGHTER, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF RE\ ENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
GOVERNMENTAL FL^DS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

RE\ENUES 

Fines and other costs 

Franchise fees 

Interest 
Intergovernmental revenues 
On-belialf payments 
Occupational licenses 
Cell phone tower rent 
Fire Disti'ict reimbursement 

Gain on sale of asset 

Other revenues 
T axes - beer 
T axes - property 
Taxes - sales 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Genera] ^verriment 

Publk safety: 
Police 
Fire 

Streets and sidewalks 

Debt Service: 
Lease Princpal 
Lease Interest 
Principal 
Interest 

Capital outlay 

T otai E^enditures 

Deficiency of Revemies over 
Expenditmes Before Otlier Financing 

Sources (Uses) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES ("USES) 

Grants and otlier contributions 
Proceeds form lease transactk>n 
Operating transfers, in 

Operating transfers, out 

Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Change in Fund Balances 

Fund Balances, beginning 

General 

Fund Balances, ending 

The accompanying notes are 

120.685 

68,057 

.i04 

9.862 

17,150 

48,352 

13.490 

(45) 

3.903 

1,359 

40,332 

100,732 

424,181 

275.837 

294,877 

77.277 

7.207 

2.655 

).255 

718,109 

(293.928) 

140,000 

155,000 

(58.831) 

236,169 

(57.758) 

490,197 

Streets and 
Sidewalks 

78.173 

78.173 

45,764 

1,954 

47.718 

30,455 

58.831 

58.831 

89,286 

52.762 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

S 120,685 

68.057 
304 

9,862 
17,150 
48.352 
13,490 

(45) 

3,903 
1,359 

40.332 
178.905 

432,439 $ 142.( 

an integral part of the financM statements. 
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502.354 

275,837 

294.877 
77,277 
45,764 

7,207 
2,655 

62,209 

765.827 

(263,473) 

140,000 

213.831 
(58,831) 

295.000 

31,527 

542.959 

574.486 



STATEMENT F 
TOWN OF SLAUGHTER, LOUISIANA 

RECONC ILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF RE\^ENUES 
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

OF GOVERNWIENTAL FIJNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTTVITES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Net Change in Fund Baknces - Total Govermiieutal Funds 

Ainoimts reported for govemniental activities in the Statement of Activities $ 31,527 
are different because; 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, 
in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets Ls aDocated over 
their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount 
by which depreciation charged differed from capital outlay in the 
cturent period. 

Capital outlays recoded as expenditures in govermiienta! funds 62,210 
Depreciation not reported in governmental fimds (183,019) 

Capital lease proceeds provide current financial resources to 
Governmental Funds, but issuing debt increases long-tenii liabilities in 
the Govermiient-Wide Statement of Net Position. Repayment of 
capital lease principal is an expenditure in the Governmental Fimds, 
but the repa>ineut reduces long-term liabilities in the Government-
Wide statements. 

This amount r epr esents capital lease principal payments during the 
current period. 

7,207 

Governmental fimds report pension contributions as expenditures. 
However, in the Statement of Activities, the cost of pension benefits 
eamed net of employee contributions is reported as pension ejqrense. 
This is the amount by which pension contributions charged differed 
from the actuarial cost of benefits. 356 

Non employer contributions to cost sharing pension plan 3,700 

Change in Net Position of Govermnental Acti\tities $ (78,019) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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TOWN OF SLAUGHTER, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

STATEMENT G 

Water Gas Total 
^SETS 

Current ^Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 17L656 $ 39,109 5 ; 210,764 
Receivables, net 17,194 19,729 36.924 
Due from other funds - 103,972 103,972 

Total Current /Asets 188,850 162,810 351,660 

Restricted Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 235,726 25,545 261,271 

Total Restricted Assets 235,726 25,545 261,271 

Capital Assets 
Risht of wav - 1,500 1,500 
Capital assets, net 1,292,063 41,171 1,333,234 
Construction in progess - - -

Net Capital Assets 1,292,063 42,671 1,334.734 

Total Assets 1,716,640 231,025 1,947,665 

DEi-ERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 15,11? $ 15,117 $ 30,233 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the fmancial statements. 
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TOWN OF SLAUGHTER, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (Continued) 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED JI NE 30. 2021 

STATEMENT G 

Watei' Gas Total 
LIABILITIES 

Cuirent Liabilities 
Payable from current assets: 

Accounts payable $ 9,483 $ 4,419 $ 13,901 
Accrued wages 1.003 1.003 2,006 
Due to other funds 119,729 159,652 279.381 

Total Current Liabilities, 
Payable from Cunent Assets 130,215 165,073 295,288 

Payable from restricted assets: 
Bonds payable 80.000 - 80.000 
Customer deposits 46,960 25,545 72.505 

Total Cuirent Liabilities, 
Payable from Restricted Assets 126,960 25,545 152,505 

Total Cunent Liabilities 257,175 190,618 447.793 

Loug-teim Liabilities 
Bonds payable 1,103,490 - 1,103,490 
Net pension liabilit>' 90,753 90,753 181,505 

Total Long Teim Liabilities 1,194,243 90,753 1,284,995 

Total Liabilities 1,451,417 281.371 1,732,788 

DEPERRED INTLOWS OF RESOURCES 23,026 23,026 46.051 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 108..573 42,671 151,244 
Restricted for debt service 188,766 - 188,766 
Restiicted for customer deposits 46,960 25,545 72,505 
Unrestricted (86,986) (126,470) (213.456) 

Total Net Position ! S 257,313 $ (58,255) $ 199,059 

The accompanying notes aie an integral part of the financial statements. 
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STATEMENT H 

TO^N OF SLAUGHTER, LOUISIANA 
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

OPERATING RE\TNUES Water Gas Total 
Sales S 367.493 S 385,023 S 752,516 
Penalties 7,713 - 7,713 
Installations 500 2.100 2,600 
Intergovernmental 1,464 1.464 2,928 

Miscellaneous - 3.143 3.143 

Total Operating Revemies 377,169 391.730 768,900 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Natural gas purchased - 78.042 78.042 

Bad debts 2,799 1.008 3.807 
Depreciation 87,736 2.474 90,210 
Salaries 64,697 64.165 128,862 
PajToU taxes 4.766 4,726 9.492 
Employee benefits 26.383 26.491 52.874 

Iiisnrance 13,092 9.988 23.080 
Supplies 22,630 5.496 28,126 

Repair and maintenance 524 523 1.047 
Auto e}q)ense 846 1,731 2.577 
Telephone 111 71 182 
Utilities 14,195 1.679 15.874 
Professional Services 30,807 6.814 37,621 

Contract labor - 2,382 2.382 
DHH Bond Fees 6.303 - 6.303 
Other 10,495 3.256 13,751 

Total Operating Expenses 285.384 208,846 494,230 

Operating Income (Loss) 91,785 182.884 274,670 

NON-OPERAHNG REVENUES fEXPENSESl 
Interest income 299 17 317 
Interest e?q3ense (43.487) - (43.487) 

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (43,188) 17 (43,170) 

INCOME (LOSS") BEFORE TRANSFERS 48.598 182,902 231,499 

Operating tiansfeis, net (52,000) (103.000) (155,000) 

Change in Net Position (3.402) 79.902 76.499 

Total Net Position, begirming 260,716 (138.156) 122,560 

Total Net Posttion. ending S 257.314 $ (58,254) S 199.059 

The accompanying note are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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STATEMENT I 

TOWT^ OF SLAUGHTER, LOUISIANA 

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Water Gas Total 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTI\TTIES 

Cash received from customers $ 390,035 $ 378,161 $768,196 

Paid for meter deposit fees 1,725 865 2,590 

Cash paid to employees for ser\'ices (64,697) (64,165) (128,862) 

Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services (200,723) (206.147) (406,870) 

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities 126,340 108,714 235,054 

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIATTIES 

Interfrmd transactions 61,153 39,116 100,269 

Transfers frora,'(to) other funds (52,000) (103,000) (155,000) 

Net Cash Used for Non-Capital Financing Actfrities 9,153 (63,884) (54,731) 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 

FINANCING ACTIVITES 

Acquisition of capital assets (3,482) (13,843) (17,325) 

Principal payments for long term debt (77,000) - (77,000) 

Interest payments for long term debt (43,487) - (43,487) 

Net Cash Provided by Capital and Related FinanciEig Activities (123,969) (13,843) (137,812) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INCUSTING ACTFVTTES 

Receqjt of interest 299 17 316 

Net Cash Provided Investing Activities 299 17 316 

Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 11,823 31,004 42,827 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning 395,559 33,650 429,209 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, ending 407,382 64,654 472,036 

CASH PRESENTATION OF STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS: 

Cmrent Assets: Cash and cash equivalents 171,656 39,109 210,764 

Restricted Assets: Cash and cash equivalents 235,726 25,545 261,271 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year $ 407,382 $ 64,654 $ 472,035 

See Accompanying Notes and Independent Auditor's Report 
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TOTO OF SLAUGHTER, LOUISIANA 

CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued) 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET 

CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTI\TTIES: 

Water 

STATEMENT I 

Gas Total 

Operating loss $ 91,785 182.884 274.670 

Adjustments to ReconcOe Operating Loss to 

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities: 

Depreciation 

(Increase) decrease in assets: 

Accounts receivable 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities: 

Accounts payable 

Accrued wages 

State sales tax 

LDHH fees 
Transfer between funds 

Payroll withholdings 

Deferred Outflows-Pensions 

Customer deposits 

Deferred Inflows-Pensions 

Net pension liability and related resources 

87,736 

16,458 

(3,094) 

(1) 
392 
275 

20,606 

1,725 
20,521 

(43,176) 

(13,349) 

),210 

3.109 

225 (2,869) 

(1) (2) 
392 
275 

(62,338) (129,225) 

20,606 

865 
20,521 

(43,173) 

41,212 

2,590 
41.042 

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities 126.340 108,714 $ 235,055 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financml statements. 
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Town of Slaughter, Louisiana 
Notes to the Financial Statement 

As and for the Year End June 30, 2021 

INTRODUCTION 

The Town of Slaughter, Louisiana (hereafter referred to as the Town) was created under the provisions of 
the LawTason Act, La. Revised Statute 33:321-463, in 1960. Therefore, it operates under a Mayor-Board of 
Aldermen form of government. 

The TOVTI was incorporated under the provisions of the LavTason Act. The Town operates under the 
Mayor-Board of Aldermen form of gov'emment. The Mayor and five Alderpersons are elected at large 
every four years by tlie citizens of the Town. They are compensated for their seivdces. 

The Town provides police and fire protection, services to maintain or develop streets, sidewalks, drainage, 
and sanitation, general and administrative services, and utilities services for area residents. It cmrently 
serves approximately 456 utility customers and employs 14 persons (not including the mayor and board 
members). 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, as amended, establishes criteria for 
determining the reporting entity and component units that should be included within the reporting entity. 
Under provisions of this statement, the Town is considered a primary government, since it is a local special 
purpose government that has a separately elected governing body. Under provisions of this statement, there 
are no component units of the Town. 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

A. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The govemment-wi(k financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of 
activities) report information on all nontiduciary activities of the primary govemment and its component 
units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. 
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are 
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for 
support. Likewise, a primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate component 
units for which the primary govemment is financially accountable. 

These financial statements are presented in accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial 
Statements, Management's Discission and Analysis, for State and Local Governments, as amended by 
GASB Statements described in the following paragraphs. Statement No. 34 established standards for 
finmicial reporting, with presentation requirements originally including a statement of net assets (or balance 
sheet), a statement of activities, and a statement of cash flows. Uie cfcfinition and composition of these 
statements, as originally defined in GASB Statement No. 34, are as amended by GASB Statements 
included in the following paragraphs. The Town has also adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 
33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions that require capital contributions to 
the Town to be presented as a change in net position. 

GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources, and Net Position, effective for financial statement periods ending after December 15, 2012, 
provides guidance for reporting deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflow^s of resources, and net 
position in a statement of financial position and related disclosures. Concepts Statement No. 4, Elements of 
Financial Statements, introduced and defined Deferred Outflows of Resources as a consumption of net 
assets by the government tliat is applicable to a future reporting period, and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
as an acquisition of net assets by the govemment that is applicable to a future reporting period, 
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Town of Slaughter, Louisiana 
Notes to the Financial Statement 

As and for the Year End June 30, 2021 

respectively. Previous financial reporting standards do not include guidance for reporting those financial 
statement elements, which are distinct from assets and liabilities. GASB Concepts Statement 4 identifies 
net position as the residual of all other elements presented in a statement of financial position. This 
Statement amends the net asset reporting requirements in Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements— 
and Management's Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments, and other pronouncements 
by incorporating deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources into the definitions of the 
required components of the residual measure and by renaming that measure as net position, rather than net 
assets. The definition and reporting of net position is further described in Footnote J - Net Position and 
Fund Equity. As required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the Town 
implemented GASB Statement No. 63 during the year ending June 30, 2012. The Town had deferred 
outflow^s and deferred inflows of resources related to pension of $69,523 and $104,399, respectively, at 
June 30, 2021. 

The Town has also adopted GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. 
This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows 
of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and 
liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were 
previously reported as assets and liabilities. See Footnote I - Long-Term Obligations. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who 
purchase, use or directly benefit fi^om goods, ser\dces, or privileges provided by a given function or 
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among 
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental fun(E, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, 
even thougli the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual 
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are presented as separate columns in the fund 
financial statements. 

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide finmicial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fimd financial statements. 
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of 
the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are 
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed 
by the provider have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible wdthin the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the 
government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current 
fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. 
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims 
and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 
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Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all 
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period 
if they are measurable and available. Only the portion of special assessment reeeivable, if any, due within 
the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. 
Substantially all other revenue items arc considered to be measurable and available only when cash is 
received by the government. 

The Town reports the following major governmental funds: 

The General Fund is the Town's primary operating fund. It aeeoimts for and reports all financial 
resources not accounted for and reported in another fund. 

The Town reports the following major proprietary funds: 

The Enterprise Fund reports activity for which a fee is charged to external users for goods or 
services. The Enterprise Fund of the Town provides gas, water, and sewer utility services. 

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types: 

Special Revenue Funds account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are 
restricted or committed to expenditure for specific purposes other than debt service or capital 
projects. For the current fiscal year, this included one major fund. 

The Debt Service Funds account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or 
assigned to expenditure for principal and interest. For the current fiscal year, the Town did not 
have debt service funds. 

The Capital Project Funds account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, 
or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays including the acquisition of capital facilities and other 
capital assets. For the current fiscal year ended, the Town did not hav'c capital project funds. 

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from tlie goveniment-wide financial 
statements. Exceptions to this general rule, if applicable, are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges 
between the government's enterprise operations. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs 
and progrmn revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or 
privileges provided; 2) program-specific operating grants and contributions; and, 3) program-specific 
capital grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than 
as program revenues. Likewise, general rev'cnues include all taxes. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the 
proprietary funds are user charges for the services provided by tlie enterprise funds. Operating expenses for 
enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, 
and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as 
non-operating revenues and expenses. 
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Wlien both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Town's policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

When restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available for use, the Town 
considers amounts to have been spent first out of restricted funds, then committed funds, then assigned 
funds, and finally unassigned fimds as needed, unless it has been provided for otherwise in the restriction, 
commitment, or assignment action. 

C. Deposits and Investments 

The Town's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term 
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Under state law, 
the Town may deposit funds in demand deposits, interest bearing demand deposits, or time deposits with 
state banks organized under Louisiana law or any other state of the United States, or mi(kr the laws of the 
United States. 

Investments for the Town are reported at fair market vali^. The state investment pool, LAMP, operates in 
accordance with state laws and regulations. The reported value of the pool is the same as the fair value of 
the pool shares. Investments are limited by Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 33:2955 and the Town's 
investment policy. 

D. Receivables and Payables 

Activity between funcE that is representative of lending/borrowing aixangements outstanding at the end of 
the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other flinds" (i.e., the current portion of interflind loans) 
or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the non-current portion of interflind loans). All other outstanding 
balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds." Any residual balances outstanding 
between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the govemment-wide 
financial statements as "internal balances." 

Advances between fun(E, as reported in the fiind financial statements, are offset by nonspendable fund 
balances in applicable govermnental funds to indicate that they are not expendable available financial 
resources. 

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible amounts. 

E. Ad Valorem Taxes 

Ad valorem taxes attach as enforceable liens on all applicable property on February of each year. 
Taxes are levied and are billed to taxpayers in November of each year. Property taxes are levied on a 
calendar year basis and become due on January 1 of each year. The following is a summary of authorized 
and levied ad valorem taxes; 

Authorized Levied Collected 
Millage Millage Millage 

General Corporate Purposes 4.49 Mills 41,974 40,332 
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The Town bills and collects its own property taxes using the assessed values determined by the tax assessor 
of East Feliciana Parish. During the year ended June 30, 2021, taxes of 6.19 mils were levied on property 
with assessed valuations totaling S9,348,367 and were dedicated for general purposes. 

F. Sales Taxes 

The Town receives 4.92% and 3.8181% of East Feliciana Parish sales tax colleetions for the (^neral Fund 
and the Special Revenue Fund respectively. These proceeds ($100,732 for the General Fund and $78,173 
for the Special Revenue Fund) are dedicated for the purpose of maintenance, repairs, and upkeep of the 
streets and sidewalks in the Special Revenue Fxmd and for general operating expenditures in the General 
Fund. 

G. Restricted Assets 

Certain proceeds of the enterprise fiind revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their 
repayment, are classified as restricted assets because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants. 
Additionally, funds held for customer's meter deposits are also classified as restricted assets. 

Certain amounts shown as governmental restricted assets are to be used for specified purposes, such as 
servicing general obligation bond debt, construction of capital assets, and police seized assets. Such assets 
have been restricted by bond indenture, law, or contractual obligations. 

H. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, 
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities 
columns in the government-wide financial statements, as well as in the proprietary fund financial 
statements. Capital assets are capitalized at historical cost or estimated cost if historical cost is not 
available. Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their estimated fair market value at the date of 
donation. The Town maintains a threshold level of $500 or more for capitalizing capital assets. 

The eosts of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend 
assets lives are not capitalized. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest 
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-t}q)e activities is included as part of the 
capitalized value of the assets constructed. 
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All capital assets, other than land, are depreciated using the straiglit-line method over the following useful 
lives: 

Description Estimated Lives 
BuiMings & Improvements 20 - 40 Years 
Machinery and Equipment 5-15 Years 
Office Furniture and Equipment 5-10 Years 
Vehicles 5-10 Years 
Infrastructure 20 - 40 Years 
Gas System 20 - 40 Years 
Water System 20 - 40 Years 
Sewer System 20 - 40 Years 

I. Compensated Absences 

Vacation and sick leave are recorded as expenditures of the period in which they are paid. Employees eam 
vacation and sick leave at various rates depending upon length of employment. Vacation must be taken in 
the year earned and may not be earned over. Although sick leave is available for employees when needed, 
it does not vest nor is it payable at termination of employment. 

J. Long-Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements and tlie proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, 
long-term debt and other long-term obligations ^u^e reported as liabilities in the applicable govermnental 
activities, business-t5q)e activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and 
discounts are amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are 
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the 
actiml debt proceeds received, are now expended in the period incurred under GASB 65. 

The Town has implemented GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previomly Reported as Assets and Liabilities, 
and with the implementation of GASB 65, the recognition of bond-related costs, including the costs related 
to issuance and refunding of debt, were revised. This standard was intended to complement GASB 
Statement No. 63 Financial Repoiting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, 
and Net Position. Bond issuance costs, whether or not withheld form the actual debt proceeds received, are 
now expended in the period incurred under GASB 65. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts as well 
as bond issuance costs during the current period. The face amount of the debt issued is reported as other 
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while 
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld 
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

K. Net Position and Fund Equity 

GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements, Management's Discussion and Analysis, for State 
and Local Governments, required reclassification of net assets into three separate components. GASB 
Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, 
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and Net Position, revised the terminology by incorporating deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources into the definitions of the required components of the residual measure and by 
renaming that measure as net position, rather than net assets. GASB Statement No. 63 requires the 
following components of net position: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets Component of Net Position - The net investment in eapital 
assets component of net position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, 
reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, or other bonowings that are 
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or 
improvement of those assets or related debt also should be included in this component of net 
position. If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds or deferred inflows of resources at 
the end of the reporting period, the portion of the debt or deferred inflows of resowces attributable 
to the unspent amount should not be included in the calculation of net investment in capital assets. 
Instead, that portion of the debt or deferred inflows of resources should be inelucfed in the same net 
position component (restricted or unrestricted) as the unspent amount. 

• Restricted Component of Net Position - The restricted component of net position consists of 
restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related to those assets. 
Generally, a liability relates to restricted assets if the asset results from a resource flow that also 
results in the recognition of a liability or if the liability will be liquidated with the restricted assets 
reported. 

• Unrestricted Component of Net Position - Die unrestricted component of net position is the net 
amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources 
that are not included in the determination of net investment in capital assets or the restricted 
component of net position. 

In the fund statements, governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. The Town adopted GASB 
54 for the year ended June 30, 2011. As such, fund balances of governmental funds are classified as 
follows: 

Nonspendable. These are amounts that cannot be spent either, because they are in a nonspendable 
foim or because tliey are legally or contractimlly required to be maintained intact. 

Restricted. These are mnounts that can be spent only for specific purposes, because of 
constitutional provisions, enabling legislation or constraints that are externally imposed by 
creditors, grantors, conhibutors, or the laws or regulations of other governments. 

Committed. These are amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a 
formal vote of the Board, which is the highest level of decision-making authority for the Town. 

Assigned. These are amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or 
committed, but are intended to be used for specific purposes based on the discretion of the Board. 

• Unassigned. These arc amounts that have not been assigned to other funds and amounts that have 
not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general fiind. Also, 
within other governmental funds, these include expenditure amounts incurred for specific purposes 
which exceed the amounts restricted, committed or assigned for those purposes. 
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L. Extraordinary and Special Items 

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are both unusual in nature and infrequent in occurrence. 
Special items are transactions or events within the control of the municipality, which are either unusiml in 
nature or infrequent in occurrence. 

M. Estimates 

The prepamtion of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 

N. Reconciliations of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-wide 
statement of net position is presented in Statement D of the basic financial statements. Explanation of 
certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund 
balances and the government-wide statement of activities is presented in Statement F of the basic financial 
statements. 

2. Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability 

The Town uses the following budget practices: 

1. The Town Clerk prepares a proposed budget and submits same to the Mayor and Board of 
Aldemien no later than fifteen days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. 

2. A summary of the proposed budget is published and the public is notified that the proposed 
budget is available for public inspection. At the same time, a publie hearing is called. 

3. A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at least ten days after publication of the 
call for the hearing. 

4. After the holding of the public hearing and completion of all action necessary to finalize 
and implement the budget, the budget is adopted through passage of an ordinance prior to 
the commencement of the fiscal year for which the budget is being adopted. 

5. Budgetary amendments involving the transfer of funds from one department, program or 
function to another or involving the increase in expenditures resulting from revenues 
exceeding amounts estimated require the approval of the Board of Aldermen. 

6. All budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year. 

7. Budgets for the general and enterprise funds are adopted on a basis consistent with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). BiMgets for enteiprise fun(E are 
presented on the accrual basis of accounting. Other govermnental funds are presented on 
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the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, the budgetary comparison 
schedules present actual expenditures in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States on a basis consistent with the legally adopted 
budgets as amended. All budgetary^ amounts presented reflect the original budget and the 
amended budget (which have been adji^ted for legally authorized revisions of the annual 
budget during the yem*). 

The proposed budget for June 30. 2021 was made available for public inspection and was 
adopted at the Town's board meeting. The budget was amencfcd. 

The street and sidewalk fiind were not in compliance with the Local Government Budget Act 
which stipulate that revenues cannot be under budget by 5% and expenditures cannot be over 
budget by 5%. The expenditures in the street and sidewalk fund were over budget by 47%. The 
revenues in the streets and sidewalks fiind were over budget by 59%. Revenues in in the general 
fund were over budget by 3%. Expenditures in the general fund were under biMget by 2%. 

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

At June 30, 2021, the Town had the following cash and cash equivalents: 

Petty cash S 400 
Demand Deposits 823,348 
Louisiana Asset Management Pool 
(LAMP) ' 

Total $ 825,870 

These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits (or 
the resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insmance or the pledge of 
securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the 
federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. These 
securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that 
is mutually acceptable to both parties. 

Custodial credit risk as it relates to cash deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the 
government's deposits may not be returned. At June 30, 2021, the Town has deposits (collected 
bank balances) at Investar Bank in the amount of $864,454. The demand deposits are secured from 
risk by $250,000 of federal deposit insurance and $614,454 of pledged securities. The $614,454 is 
exposed to custodial credit risk because while the amount is secured by pledged securities, such 
securities are held by the custodial bank in the nmie of the fiscal agent bank (GASB Category 3). 

Even though the pledged securities are considered uncollateralized (Category 3) under the 
provisions of GASB Statement 3, Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 imposes a statutory 
requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within 10 days of 
being notified by the municipality that the fiscal agent has failed to pay deposited funds upon 
demand. 
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Custodial Credit Risk: Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the 
government's deposits may not be returned to it. The Town does not have a formal policy for 
custodial risk. However, under state law, these deposits (or the resulting bank balances) must be 
secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. 

4. Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP) 

In accordance with GASB 72, the investment in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP) at 
June 30, 2021, is not categorized in the three risk categories provided by GASB Codification 
Section 150.164 because the investment is in the pool of funds and therefore not evidenced by 
securities that exist in physical or book entry form. The investment in LAMP is stated at the value 
of the pool shares, which is the same as the fair value. LAMP is administered by LAMP, Inc., a 
non-profit corporation organized under tlie laws of the State of Louisiana, which was formed by an 
initiative of the State Treasurer in 1993. The corporation is governed by a board of directors 
comprised of the State Treasurer, representatives from various organizations of local govermnent, 
the Government Finance Office Association of Louisiana, and the Society of Louisiana CPAs. 
Only local government entities having contracted to participate in LAMP have an investment 
interest in its pool of assets. The primary objective of LAMP is to provide a safe environment for 
the placement of public funds in short-term, high quality investments. The LAMP portfolio 
includes only securities and other obligations in which local govemments in Louisiana are 
authorized to invest. 

LAMP is subject to the regulator oversight of the state treasurer and the board of directors. LAMP 
is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. 

While LAMP is not required to be a registered investment company under the Investment 
Company Act of 1940, its investment policies are similar to those established by Rule 2a7, which 
governs registered money market funds. The primaiy objective of LAMP is to provide a safe 
environment for the placement of public funds in short-term, high quality investments. The LAMP 
portfolio includes only securities and other obligations in which local govemments in Louisiana are 
authorized to invest in accordance with LSA-R.S. 33:2955. 

GASB 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosure, requires disclosure of credit risk, custodial 
credit risk, concentration of credit risk interest rate risk, and foreign currency risk for all public 
entity investments. 

LAMP is a 2a7 - like investment pool. The following facts are relevant for 2a7 like investment 
pools: 

1. Credit risk: LAMP is rated AAAm by Standar(fe and Poor's. 
2. Custodial credit risk: LAMP participmits' investments in the pool are evidenced by shares of the 

pool. Investments in pools should be disclosed, but not categorized becai^e they are not evidenced 
by securities that exist in physical or book-enhy form. The public entity's investment is with the 
pool, not the securities that make up the pool; therefore, no disclosure is required. 

3. Concentration of credit risk: Pooled investments are excluded from the five percent disclosure 
requirement. 

4. Interest rate risk: 2a7-like investment pools are excluded from this disclosure requirement per 
paragraph 15 of the GASB 40 statement. However, LAMP prepares its own interest rate risk 
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disclosure using the weighted average maturity (WAM) method. The WAM of LAMP assets is 
restricted to not more than 60 days, and consists of no securities with a maturity in excess of 397 
days. The WAM for LAMP'S total investments, as provicfcd by LAMP, is 53 days as of June 30, 
2021. 

5. Foreign currency risk: Not applicable to 2a7-like pools. 

LAMP is designed to be highly liquid to give its participants immediate access to their account 
balances. The investments in LAMP are stated at fair value based on quoted market rates. The fair 
value is determined on a weekly basis by LAMP and the value of the position in the external 
investment pool is the same as the net asset value of the pool shares. 

LAMP, Inc. is subject to the regulatory oversight of the state treasurer and the board of directors. 
LAMP is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. LAMP, Inc., issues an annual 
publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary 
information for LAMP, Inc. That report may be obtained by calling (800) 249-5267. 

5. Investments 

Investments are categorized into these three categories of credit risk: 

1. Insured or registered, or securities held by the town or its agent in the Town's name 

2. Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty's trust department or 
agent in the Towm's name 

3. Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty, or by its trust department 
or agent but not in the Town's name 

All investments held by the Town fall into category 1 credit risk, defined as "insured or registered, or 
securities held by the Town or its agent in the Town's name." AH investments are stated on the balance 
sheet (carr}^ing value) at market value. In accordance with GASB 31, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools, the Town categorizes its fair 
value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting 
principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs i^ed to measure the fair value of the asset. 
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant 
other obsen^able inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. 

At June 30, 2021, the Towm's investment balances were as follows: 

Maturity Carrying Fair Market 
Investment Bank Date Amount Amount 

Certificate of Deposit Investar 7./22./2021 $ 10,000 S 10,000 
Certificate of Deposit Investar 10/6/2021 10,000 10,000 
Certificate of Deposit Invests 11/28/2021 10,000 10,000 
Certificate of Deposit Landmark Bank 3/11/2022 13,484 13,484 

Total $ 43,484 S 43,484 
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Interest Rate Risk: The Town does not have a formal investment policy that limits investments 
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value arising from increasing interest rates. 

6. Receivables 

Major receivables balances for the governmental activities include sales taxes, franchise taxes, occupational 
licenses, and fines. Business-type activities report utilities earnings as their major receivable. 

In the fund financial statements, material receivables in govermnental funds include revenue accruals such 
as sales tax, franchise taxes, occupational licenses, fines, and other similar intergovernmental revenues 
since they are usually both measurable and available. Utility accounts receivable comprise the majority of 
proprietary fund receivables. The Town's utility receivables have a portion in which it does not expect to 
collect, and therefore an allowance has been placed as shown below. 

Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical trends and the periodic aging 
and write-off of accounts receivable. 

Class General Fund Special Revenue Total 
Fund 

Accoimts $ - $ - $ 62,019 $ 62,019 

Taxes: 

Franchise 18,188 - - 18,188 

Sales 18,506 14,361 - 32,867 

Sub-total 36,694 14,361 - 51,055 
Less: Allowara^e for 

(25,095) (25,095) 
doubtful accoimts 

- - (25,095) (25,095) 

Net 36,694 14,361 36,924 87,979 
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7. Interfund Receivables/Payables 

The following is a detailed list of interfund balances for flind financial statements on June 30, 2021: 

Receivable Payable 
General Fund 

Streets and Sidewalks S 19,011 S 
Gas 159,652 
Water 15,757 

Special Revenue Funds 
Streets and Sidewalks 

General Fund - 19,011 
Gas 
Water 

Gas 
Streets and Sidewalks 
General Fund - 159,652 
Water 103,972 

Water 
Streets and Sidewalks 
General Fund - 15,757 
Gas - 103.972 

Total S 298.392 S 298.392 

8. Restricted Assets 

The following is a listing of the restricted assets for the fund financial statements on June 30, 2021: 

Special Enterprise 
Revenue Fund Fund T otal 

Sales Tax Account S 147,275 $ - $ 147,275 
Meter Deposits - 72,505 72,505 
Revenue bond sinking fund - 46,845 46,845 
Revenue bond reseive fund - 65,770 65,770 
Depreciation and contingency fund - 76,151 76,151 
Total restricted assets S 147,275 $ 261,271 $ 408,545 
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9. Capital Assets 

The following is a summary of the changes in capital assets for governmental activities for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2021: 

Begjiming Ending 

Balance Additions Deductions Balance 

Governmental Activities 
Capital Assets, not being depreciated 

Land $ 174,189 $ - S $ 174,189 

Capital Assets, being depreciated 

Building and improvements 518,985 - 518,985 

Less: accumulated deprecation 202,063 12,945 215,008 

Net Building and Improvements 316,922 (12,945) 303,977 

Infrastructure 452,848 - 452,848 

Less: accumulated deprecation 282,755 22,148 304,903 

Net Sidewalks/Draina^ 170,093 (22,148) 147,945 

Equipment and Vehicles 2,347,544 62,209 2,409,753 

Less: accumulated deprecation 1,487,860 147,926 1,635,786 

Net Equ^ment 859,684 (85,717) 773,967 

T otal Capital Assets, being depreciated, net 1,346,699 (120,810) 1,225,889 

-

Capital Assets, net $ 1,520,888 $ (120,810) $ $ 1,400,078 

Depreciation was charged as governmental fiinctions as follows: 

General government 
Police 
Fire 
Streets and Sidewalks 

Total 

75,860 
48,474 
32,348 
26,337 

S 183,019 

Significant capital additions in the governmental hinds for the year ending June 30, 2021, consisted of a 
drilling rig for $11,124, a new computer system for $30,921, and radios for the fire department for $20,164. 
Grant funding paid for the new computer system and radios. Depreciation expense for governmental funds 
was $183,019. 

Capital assets and depreciation activity as of and for the year ended October 31, 2021 for business-type 
activities is as follows: 
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Business Activities 

Capital Assets, not being depreckted 

Constmction in Progiess 

Begiiming 

Balance Additions Deductions 

Ending 

Balance 

Capital Assets, being depreckted 
• 

Vehicles $ 92,924 ^ ; - $ 92,924 

Less: accuimilated deprecktion 78,598 5,372 83,970 

Net Vehicles 14,326 (5,372) 8,954 

Gas system 84,507 13,842 98,349 

Less: acciimukted deprecktion 53,025 2,474 55,499 

Net Gas system 31,482 11,368 42,850 

Water system 2,777,358 3,482 2,780,840 

Less: accumulated deprecktion 1.415.546 82.364 1,497,910 

Net Water system 1,361,812 (78,882) 1,282,930 

Total Capital Assets, being depreckted, net 1,407,620 (72,886) 1,334,734 

Capital Assets, net $ 1,407,620 1 i (72,886) $ $ 1,334,734 

DqDreciation was charged as governmental functions as follows: 

Gas 
Water 

Total 

2,474 
^7.736 

90.210 

Significant capital additions in the enterprise funtk for the year ending June 30, 2021, consisted of a 
drilling rig for S3,876, a colorimeter for $1,527 for the water system, and a 2" bore on a gas main for 
$11,921. Depreciation expense for the enteiprise funds was $90,210. 
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10. Accounts, Salaries, and Other Payables 

The payables at June 30, 2021 are as follows; 

Speical 
General Fund Reveni^ Fund Water Gas Total 

Accounts $ 20,340 $ 576 3 ; 9,483 : fi 4,419 $ 34,818 

Accrued Insiirauce - - - - -
Acciued Wages 4,992 - 1,003 1,003 6,998 

Payroll liabililies 23,388 - - - 23,388 

Customer deposits - - 46,960 25,545 72,505 

Total $ 48,720 $ 576 3 ; 57,446 : fi 30,967 $ 137,709 

11. Short Term Obligations 

The Town had no short-term debt outstanding at June 30, 2021, other than the current portions of revenue 
bonds payables and capital leases deseribed in Note 13 Long-Term Obligations. 

12. Leases 

The Town records items under eapital leases as an asset and mi obligation in the aceompanying finaneial 
statements. At June 30, 2021, the Town had the following capital leases: 

Due 
Within 

End of Year One Year 

The TOWTI entered into a lease purchae agreement to purchase a custom $ 59,199 $ 7,496 
pumper truck for a total lease amount of S80,000. The lease is payable in 
10 yearly payments of $9,862.29. The truck is being deprecmted over its 
estimated useful life. This portion of die lease is recored within the 
govermental funds as a capital lease in the General hind. 

59,199 $ 7. 
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13. Long-Term Obligations 

The following is a summary of long-term obligation transactions for the year ended June 30, 2021: 

Govennental Acthdties Business-type Activities Total 

Capital Revenue C^apital Revenue Long-T erm 

Leases Bonds Leases Bonds Obligitions 

Beginning Balance 66,406 1,260,490 1,326,896 

Additons - - -

Retirements (7,207) (77,000) (84,207) 

Ending Balance 59,199 1,183,490 1,242,689 

The following is a summary of the cunent (due in one year or less) and the long-term (due in more than one 

year) portions of the long-term obligations; 

Govennental Activities Business-t3pe Activities Total 
Current Long Term Current Long T erm Long-Teim 

Portioii Portion Total Portion Portioii Total Obligations 

Capital Leases 7,496 51,703 59,199 . 59,199 
Revenue Bonds . 80,000 1,103,490 1,183,490 1,183,490 

Net Pension Liability 50,150 50,1.50 181,505 181,505 231.655 

Ending Balance 7,496 101,853 109,349 80,000 1,284,995 1,364,995 1,474344 

Bonds Payable as of June 30, 2021, are as follows; 

Business Type 
End of Year 

Due Within 
One Year 

$1,355,000 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds payable, due in annual 
installments of $25,000 fhrou^ $81,000 throng June 1, 2036; interest rate of 
3.45%; payable from water system revenues 44.000 

$640,523 Water Revenue Bonds payable; due in annul installments of 
$16,000 throng $45,000 throu^ .Tune 1, 2028; interest rate of 3.45%; 
payable from water system revenues 284,000 

1,183,490 

36.000 

80,000 

The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding at June 30, 2021, including interest payments are 
as follows; 
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Water Revenue Bonds 
Year Principal Interest Total 

2022 80,000 40,830 120,830 

2023 83,000 38,070 121,070 

2024 87,000 35,208 122,208 

2025 91,000 32,206 123,206 

2026 95,000 29,064 124,064 

2027 to 2031 389,000 98,308 487,308 

2032 to 2036 358,940 37.310 396,250 

Total 1,183,940 310,996 1,494,936 

Capital Lease 

Year Principal Interest Total 

2022 7,496 2,367 9,863 

2023 7,795 2,067 9,862 

2024 8,107 1,755 9,862 

2025 8,431 1,431 9,862 

2026 8,768 1,094 9,862 

2027 18,602 1,123 19.725 

Total 59,199 9,837 69,036 

14. Flow of Funds: Restrictions on Use-Water Revenue Bonds 

Under the terms of the General Bond Ordinances dated November 28, 2007, relative to tlie $1,355,000 
Water Revenue Refunding Bonds and June 30, 2008, relative to the $640,523 Waaler Revenue Bonds, all 
income and revenues (hereinafter referred to as revenue) of every nature, earned or derived from operation 
of the water utility system shall be deposited into a Water Revenue Fund, which are pledged and dedicated 
to the retirement of said bonds, and are to be set aside into the following special funds: Each month, no 
later than the 20th of the month, the Town is required to transfer 1/12 of that year's debt sendee from the 
Water Revenue Fund into the Water Revenue Bond and Interest Sinking Fund. Twice a year, on June 1 and 
December 1, a withdrawal will be made from the Sinking Fund, principal and'or interest coming due on 
said dates to the Department of Health and Hospitals (DHH). The Town did m^e the sinking fund deposits 
monthly as required by the bond documents. 

There shall also be set asi(k into a "Water Revenue Bond Reserve Fund" an amount equal to one-half (1/2) 
of the highest annual debt service in any subsequent year. The Reserve Fund should be funded by the Town 
through monthly installments. Such amount may be used only for the payment of maturing bonds and 
interest coupons for which sufficient funds are not on deposit in the Water Revenue Bond and Interest 
Sinking Fund and as to which there would otherwise be default. The account was fully funded at the end of 
June 30, 2021. 

Funds will also be set aside into a 'W^ater Revenue Bond Depreciation and Contingency Fund" in order to 
provide an available reserve for extensions, additions, improvements, renewals and replacements necessary 
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to properly operate the Water System. Money in this fund may be used for emergency situations to get the 
system repaired and generating revenues as soon as possible after a casualty and for any types of ongoing 
capital improvements to the water system. The Contingency Fund should be funded by the Town through 
monthly installments equal to 5% of the previous month's net water revenues, until it contains $75,000. 
The account was fully funded at the end of June 30, 2021. 

The General Bond Ordinance also contains a rate covenant by which the Town has agreed to maintain its 
water rates at a level that will always provide net revenues of the system equal to at least 120% of annual 
debt service on the bonds. Uie Town did meet the required net revenue requirement. The Town had a net 
revenue ratio of 148%. 

All of the revenues received in any fiscal year and not required to be paid in such fiscal year into any of the 
above noted funds shall be regarded as surplus and may be used for any lawful corporate purpose. 

15. Retirement Systems 

Employees of the Town are members of the Municipal Employees Retirement System of Louisiana The 
Town was a participant of the Municipal Police Employees Retirement System of Louisiana. However, the 
Town no longer contributions to the police retirement system. These systems are a cost-sharing, multiple-
employer public employee retirement system (PERS), controlled and administered by a separate board of 
trustees. 

The Town implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 68 on Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Statement 71 on Pension Transition for Contributions Made 
Subsequent to the Measurement Date -an amendment of GASB 68. These standards require the Town to 
record its proportional share of each of the pension plans' net pension liability and report the following 
disclosures: 

A. Municipal Employee Retirement System of Louisiana (System) 

Plan Description. The System was established and provided for by R.S. 11:1731 of the Louisiana Revised 
Statutes (LRS). The System provides retirement benefits to employees of all incorporated villages, towns, 
and cities within the State which do not have their own retirement system and which elect to become 
members of the system. 

Membership is mandatory as a condition of employment beginning on the date employed if the employee is 
on a pennanent basis working at least thirty-five hours per week. Those individuals paid jointly by a 
participating employer and the parish are not eligible for membership in the System with exceptions as 
outlined in the statutes. 

The System is composed of two distinct plans, Plan A and Plan B, with separate assets and benefit 
provisions. All employees of the municipality are members of Plan A. 

Retirement Benefits: 
Benefit provisions are authorized within Act 356 of the 1954 regular session and amended by LRS 
11:1756-11:1785. The following brief description is of the plan and its benefits and is provided for general 
information purposes only. Participants should refer to the appropriate statutes for more complete 
information. 
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Any member of Plan A who commenced participation in the System prior to January 1, 2013 can retire 
providing he meets one of the following criteria; 

1. Any age with twenty-five (25) years of ereditable service. 
2. Age 60 with a minimum of ten (10) or more years of ereditable seivdce. 
3. Any age with 20 years of creditable service, exclusive of military service and unused annual and sick 
leave, with an actuarially reduced early benefit. 

Generally, the monthly amount of the retirement allowance for any member of Plan A shall consist of an 
amount equal to three percent of the member's monthly average final compensation multiplied by his years 
of creditable service. Final average compensation is the average monthly earnings during the liighest sixty 
consecutive months, or joined months if sendee was interrupted. However, under certain conditions as 
outlined in the statutes, the benefits are limited to specified amounts. 

Any member of Plan A Tier 2 shall be eligible for retirement if he meets one of the following requirements: 

1. Age 67 with seven (7) years of creditable serviee. 
2. Age 62 with ten (10) years of creditable service. 
3. Age 55 with thiity (30) years of creditable sendee. 
4. Any age with twenty-five (25) years of creditable sendee, exclusive of military service and unused 
annual and sick leave, with an actuarially reduced early benefit. 

The monthly amount of the retirement allowance for any member of Plan A Tier 2 shall consist of an 
amount equal to three percent of the member's final eompensation multiplied by his years of creditable 
service. Final average compensation is the average monthly earnings during the highest sixty consecutive 
months, or joined months if seivdce was interrupted. However, under eertain conditions as outlined in the 
statutes, the benefits are limited to specified amounts. 

Sundvor Benefits: 
Upon death of any member of Plan A with five (5) or more years of creditable seivdce, not eligible for 
normal retirement, the plan provides for benefits for the surviving spouse as outlined in the statutes. 

Any member of Plan A who is eligible for normal retirement at time of death and who leaves a suivdving 
spouse will be deemed to have retired and selected Option 2 benefits on behalf of the survdving spouse on 
the date of death. Such benefits will begin only upon proper application and are paid in lieu of any other 
suivdvor benefits. 

DROP Benefits: 
In lieu of terminating employment and accepting a service retirement allowance, any member of Plan A or 
B who is eligible to retire may elect to participate in the deferred retirement option plan (DROP) for up to 
three years and defer the receipt of benefits. During participation in the plan, employer contributions are 
payable but employee contributions cease. The monthly retirement benefits that would be payable, had the 
person elected to cease employment and receive a seivdce retirement allowanee, are paid into the DROP 
Fund. Interest is earned when the member has completed DROP participation. Interest earnings are based 
upon the actual rate of return on the investments identified as DROP fiinds for the period. In addition, no 
cost-of-living increases are payable to participants until employment which made them eligible to become 
members of the System has been tenninated for at least one lull year. 
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Upon termination of employment prior to or at the end of the specified period of participation, a participant 
in the DROP may receive, at his option, a Imnp sum fi:om the account equal to the payments into the 
account, a true annuity based upon his account balance in that fund, or any other method of payment if 
approved by the boM"d of trustees. If a partieipant dies during the partieipation in the DROP, a lump sum 
equal to the balance in his account shall be paid to his named beneficiary or, if none, to his estate. If 
employment is not terminated at the end of the three years, payments into the DROP fund cease and the 
person resumes active contributing membership in the System. 

Disability Benefits: 
For Plan A, a member shall be eligible to retire and receive a disability benefit if he has at least five years 
of creditable service, is not eligible for normal retirement, and has been officially certified as disabled by 
the State Medical Disability Board. Upon retirement caused by disability, a member of Plan A shall be paid 
a disability benefit equal to the lesser of (1) an amount equal to three percent of his final compensation 
multiplied by his years of creditable sendee, but not less than forty-five percent of his final compensation, 
or (2) an amount eqiml to what the member's normal retirement benefit would be based on the member's 
current final compensation, but assuming the member remained in continuous service until his earliest 
normal retirement age and using those retirement benefit computation factors which would be applicable to 
the member's normal retirement. 

Cost of Living Increases: 
The System is authorized under state law to grant a cost of living increase to members who have been 
retired for at least one year. The adjustment cannot exceed 2% of the retiree's original benefit for each full 
calendar year since retirement and may only be granted if sufficient funds are available from investment 
income in excess of normal requirements. State law allows the System to gmnt an additional cost of living 
increase to all retirees and beneficiaries who are age sixty-five and above equal to 2% of the benefit being 
received on October 1, 1977, or the original benefit, if retirement commenced after that date. 

Deferred Benefits: 
Both Plans provide for deferred benefits for members who terminate before being eligible for retirement. 
Once the member reaches the appropriate age for retirement; benefits become payable. Benefits are based 
on statutes in effect at time of withdrawal. 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that inclines financial statements and 
required supplemental information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the 
Municipal Employees Retirement System of Lomsiana, 7937 Office Park Boulevard, Baton Rouge, 
Louisiana 70809, or calling (225) 925-4810 or at www.mersla.eom. 

Funding Policy. Under Plan A, members are required by state statute to contribute 10.00% of their annual 
covered salary and the Town of Slaughter is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The 
current rate is 29.50% of annual covered payroll. Contributions to the System also inelu(k one-fourth of 
one percent (except Orleans) of the taxes shown to be collectible by the tax rolls of each parish. Tax 
monies are apportioned between Plan A and Plan B in proportion to salaries of plan p^ticipants. Tax 
monies received from East Baton Rouge Parish are apportioned between the Municipal Employees' 
Retirement System and the Employees' Retirement System of the City of Baton Rouge. The System also 
receives revenue sharing flm(E each year as appropriated by the Legislature. These additional sources of 
income are used as additional employer contributions and considered support from non-employer 
contributing entities, but are not considered special funding situations. Non-employer contributions are 
recognized as revenue and excluded from pension expense for the year ended June 30, 2021. During the 
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year ending June 30, 2021, the Town recognized revenue as a result of support received from non-employer 
contributing entities of $5,479 for its participation in MERS-Plan A. 

The Town's contributions to the System under Plan A for the years ending June 30, 2021 and 2020 were 
$42,895, and $42,046, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions: At June 30, 2021, the Town reported a liability of $204,251 for its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability of the System. The net pension liability was measured as of 
June 30, 2021 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of that date. The Town's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a 
projection of the Town's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected 
contribution of all participating, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2021, the Town's proportion was 
0.0734319%, which was a decrease of 0.011177% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2020. 

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the Town recognized pension expense for the MERS System of $41,732 
representing its proportionate share of the System's net expense, incliKling amortization of deferred 
amounts. 

At June 30, 2021, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to the MERS pension system from the following sources: 

Defened Outflows Deferred Inflows of 
of Resources Resour ces 

Differences between e?q)ected and actual experience $ 74 $ (2,335) 

Changs of Assumptions 7,464 

Net difference between projected and actual earning on pension 
plan investments - (57,548) 

Changes in propoilion and differences between Employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 22,695 (30,094) 

Employer contribiitions subsequent to the measurement date - -

Total $ 30,233 S (89,977) 

The Town reported a total of $0 as deferred outflow of resources related to pension contributions made 
subsequent to the measurement period of June 30, 2021 which will be recognized as a reduction in net 
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2021. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year 

2022 $ (17,213) 
2023 (18,306) 
2024 (14,836) 
2025 (19,480) 

$ (69,836) 
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Actuarial Assumptions. A summary of the actuarial metho(k and assumptions used in determining the total 
pension liability as of June 30, 2021 is as follows; 

Valuation Date 
Actuarial Cost Method 

Actuarial Assumptions: 
Expected Remaining Service Lives 

Investment Rate of Return 

June 30, 2021 
Entry Age Normal 

3 years 

6.85%, net of pension plan investment expense, including 
Inflation. 

Inflation Rate 2.5% 

Salary increases, including 
Inflation and merit increases; 
-1 to 4 years of senice 
-More than 4 years of 
Sendee 

6.4%-Plan A and 7.4% Plan B 

4.5%-Plan A and 4.9% Plan B 

Annuitant and benefici^y mortality 

Employee mortality 

Disabled lives mortality 

PubG-2010(B) Healthy Retiree Table set to equal to 120% 
For males and females, each adjusted using their 
respective male and female MP2018 scales. 

PubG-20i0(B) Healthy Retiree Table set to equal to 120% 
For males and females, each adjusted using their 
respective male and female MP2018 scales. 

PubG-2010(B) Healthy Retiree Table set to equal to 120% 
For males and females, with the fiill generational MP2018 
scales. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimates ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of 
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation and an adjustment for the 
effect of rebalancing'diversification. 

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the System's target 
asset allocation as of June 30, 2021 are summarized in the following table; 
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Long-Term 

Expected 

Target Asset Portfolio Real 

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return 

Public Equity 53% 2.31 % 

Public Fixed Income 38% 1.65% 

Alternatives 9% 0.39% 

Totals 100% 4.35% 

Inflation 2.60% 

E?q3ected Aritlimetic Nominal Rate 6.95% 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.85%. The projection of cash flows used 
to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current 
contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers will be made at the actuarially 
determined rates which are calculated in accordance with relevant statutes and approved by the Board of 
Trustees and the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee. Based on those assumptions, the 
System's fiduciaiy^ net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments 
of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of retum on pension plan investments was 
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to detennine the total pension liability. 

The effects of certain other changes in the net pension liability are required to be included in pension 
expense over the current future periods. The effects on the total pension liability of (1) changes of 
economic and demographic assumptions or of other inputs and (2) differences between expected and actual 
experience are required to be included in pension expense in a systematic and rational manner over a closed 
period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are proved with 
benefits through the pension plan (aetive employees and inactive employees), determined as of the 
beginning of the measurement period. The effect on net pension liability of differences between the 
projected earning on pension plan investments and actual experience with regard to those earnings is 
required to be included in pension expense in a systematic and rational manner over a closed period of five 
years, beginning with the current period. Hie Expected Remaining Service Lives (ERSL) for 2021 is 3 
years for Plan A and B. 

Sensitivity of the Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability^ to Changes in the Discount 
Rate. The following presents the net pension liability of the participating employers calculated using the 
discount rate of 6.85%, as well as what the employers' net pension liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower, or one percentage point higher than the current rate 
as of June 30, 2021: 

Current 
1% Decrease Discourn: Rate 1% Increase 

Rates 5.850% 6.850% 7.850% 
Town ofSlaughter Share of NPL S 302,507 $ 204,251 S 121,261 
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Payable to the Pension Plan. At June 30, 2021, the Town reported a payable of $9,389 for outstanding 
contributions to the pension plan required for the year ended June 30, 2021. 

B. Municipal Police Employees Retirement System of Louisiana (System) 

Plan Description. The Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (System) is a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan established by Act 189 of 1973 to provide retirement, 
disability, and sur\dvor benefits to municipal police officers in Louisiana. 

Membership is mandatory for any full-time police officer employed by a municipality of the State of 
Louisiana and engaged in law enforcement, empowered to make arrest, providing he does not have to pay 
social security and providing he meets the statutory criteria. 

Retirement Benefits: 
Benefit provisions are authorized within Act 189 of 1973 and amended by LRS 11:2211-11:2233. The 
following is a brief description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for general information puiposes 
only. Participants should refer to the appropriate statutes for more complete information. 

Membership Prior to January 1, 2013: A member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been a 
member of the System and has 25 years of creditable service at any age or has 20 years of creditable 
service and is age 50 or has 12 years creditable service and is age 55. A member is eligible for early 
retirement after he has been a member of the System for 20 years of creditable ser\dce at any age with an 
actuarially reduced benefit. 

Benefit rates sxt three and one-third percent of average final compensation (average monthly earnings 
during the highest 36 consecutive months or joined months if service was interrupted) per number of years 
of creditable ser\'ice not to exceed 100% of final salary. 

Upon the death of an active contributing member, or disability retiree, the plan provides for surviving 
spouses and minor children. Under certain conditions outlined in the statutes, the benefits range from forty 
to sixty percent of the member's average final compensation for the sundving spouse. In addition, each 
child under age eighteen receives benefits equal to ten percent of the member's average final compensation 
or $200 per month, wliiehever is greater. 

Membership Commencing January 1, 2013: Member eligibility for regular retirement, early retirement, 
disability and survivor benefits are based on Hazardous Duty and Non Hazardous Duty sub plans. Under 
the Hazardous Duty sub plan, a member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been a member of the 
System and has 25 years of creditable sendee at any age or has 12 years of creditable service at age 55. 

Under the Non Hazardous Duty sub plan, a member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been a 
member of the System and has 30 years of creditable service at any age, 25 years of creditable sendee at 
age 55, or 10 years of creditable service at age 60. Under both sub plans, a member is eligible for early 
retirement after he has been a member of the System for 20 years of creditable sendee at any age, with an 
actuarially reduced benefit from age 55. 

Under the Hazardous and Non Hazardous Duty sub plans, the benefit rates are three percent and two and a 
half percent, respectively, of average final compensation (average monthly earnings during the highest 60 
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consecutive months or joined months if ser\ice was interrupted) per number of years of creditable seivdce 
not to exceed 100% of final salary. 

Upon death of an active contributing member, or disability retiree, the plan provides for surviving spouses 
and minor ehildren. Under certain conditions outlined in the statues, the benefits range from twenty-five to 
fifly-five percent of the member's average final compensation for the surviving spouse. In addition, each 
child under age eighteen receives ten percent of average final compensation or $200 per month whichever 
is greater. If deceased member had less than ten years of service, beneficiary will receive a refiind of 
employee contributions only. 

Cost of Living Adjustments: 
The Board of Trustees is authorized to provide annual cost-of-living adjustments computed on the amount 
of the current regular retirement, disability, beneficiary or survivor's benefit, not to exceed 3% in any given 
year. The Board is authorized to provide an additional 2% COLA, computed on the member's original 
benefit, to all regular retirees, disability, survivors and benelieiaries who are 65 years of age or older on the 
cut-off date which determines eligibility. 

No regular retiree, survivor or beneficiary shall be eligible to receive a cost-of-living adjustment until 
benefits have been received at least one full fiscal year and the payment of sueh COLA, when authorized, 
shall not be effective until the lapse of at least one-half of the fiscal year. Members who elect early 
retirement are not eligible for a cost-of-living adjustment until they reach regular retirement age. 

A COLA may only be granted if funds are available form interest earnings in excess of normal 
requirements, as detennined by the actuary. 

Deferred Retirement Option Plan: 
A member is eligible to eleet to enter the deferred retirement option plan (DROP) when he is eligible for 
regular retirement based on the members' sub plan participation. Upon filing the application for the 
program, tlie employee's active membership in the System is terminated. At the entry date into the DROP, 
the employee and employer contributions cease. The amount to be deposited into the DROP account is 
equal to the benefit computed under the retirement plan eleeted by the participant at date of application. 
The duration of participation in the DROP is thirty-six months or less. If employment is terminated after 
the three-year period the participant may receive his benefits by lump sum payment or a true annuity. If 
employment is not terminated, active contributing membersliip into the System shall resiune and upon later 
termination, he shall receiv'e additional retirement benefit based on the additional service. For those eligible 
to enter DROP prior to January 1, 2004, DROP accounts shall earn interest subsequent to the termination of 
DROP participation at a rate of half of one percentage point below the percentage rate of return of the 
System's investment portfolio as certified by the actuary on an annual basis but will nev^er lose money. For 
those eligible to enter DROP subsequent to January I, 2004, an irrevocable election is made to earn interest 
based on the System's investment portfolio return or a money market investment return. This could result in 
a negative earnings rate being applied to the account. If the member elects a money market investment 
return, the funds are hansferred to a government money market account. 

Initial Benefit Option Plan: 
In 1999, the State Legislature authorized the System to establish an Initial Benefit Option program. Initial 
Benefit Option is available to members who are eligible for regular retirement and have not participated in 
DROP. Tlie Initial Benefit Option program provides both a one-time single sum payment of up to 36 
months of regular monthly retirement benefit, plus a reduced monthly retirement benefit for life. Interest is 
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computed on the balance based on same criteria as DROP. Statutes should be read for more detail on 
eligibility and benefit provisions. 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplemental information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the 
Municipal Police Employees Retirement System of Louisiana, 8401 United Plaza Boulevard, Baton Rouge, 
Louisiana 70809-2250, or by calling (225) 929-7411 or at www.lampers.org. 

Funding Policy. According to state statute, the Town is required to contribute at an actuarially determined 
rate but cannot be less than 9% of the employee's eamable compensation excluding overtime but including 
state supplemental pay. For the year ended Jime 30, 2021, total contributions due for employers and 
employees w^ere 43.75%. The employer and employee contribution rates for members hired prior to 
January 1, 2013 and Hazardous Duty members hired after January 1, 2013 were 33.75% and 10%, 
respectively. The employer and employee contribution rates for all Non-Hazardous Duty members hired 
after January 1, 2013 were 33.75% and 8%, respectively. The employer and employee contribution rates for 
members whose eamable compensation is less than or equal to poverty guidelines issued by the U.S. 
Department of Health and Human Services w^ere 36.25% and 7.50%, respectively. 

The System also receives insurance premium tax monies as additional employer contributions and 
considered support fiom a non-contributing entity. This tax is appropriated by the legislature each year 
based on an actuarial study. This additional source of income is used as additional employer contributions 
and considered support from non-employer contributing entities, but is not considered a special funding 
situation. Non-employer contributions are recognized as revenue and excluded from pension expense for 
the year ended June 30, 2021. The Town had $ 1,149 in non-employer contributions for the year. 

The Town contributed $9,905 and $0 funds to the System for the years ending October 31, 2021 and 2020 
respectively. 

Pension LiabiliTies, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions: At June 30, 2021, the Town reported $27,404 in net pension liability for its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability of the System. Tlie net pension liability was measured as of 
June 30, 2021 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of that date. The Town's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a 
projection of the Town's long-term shm^e of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected 
contribution of all participating, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2021, the Town's proportion was 
0.005141%, which was a decrease of 0.005141% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2020. 

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the Town recognized pension expense for the MPERS System of 
$11,327 representing its proportionate share of the System's net expense, including amortization of 
deferred amounts. 

At June 30, 2021, the Town reported deferred outflow's of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to the MPERS pension system from the following sourees; 
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Town of Slaughter, Louisiana 
Notes to the Financial Statement 

As and for the Year End June 30, 2021 

Deteixed CXitflows 
of Resources 

Deteixed Inflows of 
Resources 

Differences between e^qrected and actual experience $ $ (844) 

Changes of Assmnpfioirs 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension 

3,035 (782) 

plan investments - (12,796) 

Changes in proportion and differences between Employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributioiK 36,255 

Employer coritrfciitions subsequent to the measurement date - -

Total $ 39,290 $ (14,422) 

The Town reported a total of $0 deferred outflow of resources related to pension contributions made 
subsequent to the measurement period of June 30, 2021. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year 
2022 $ 44,883 
2023 12,086 
2024 33,950 
2025 . 

90.918 

Actuarial Assumptions. A summar}^ of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total 
pension liability as of June 30, 2021, is as follows: 

Valuation Date 
Actuarial Cost Method 

Actuarial Assumptions: 
Investment Rate of Return 

Expected Remaining Service Lives 

Inflation Rate 

June 30, 2021 
Entry Age Nomial 

6.750%, net of investment expense 

2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021- 4 years 

2.50% 

Years of Service Salary Growdi Rate 

Salary increases, including inflation 

and merit 

1-2 

Above 2 

12.30% 

4.70% 

Mortality For annuitants and beneficiaries, the Pub-2010 Public 
Retirement Plan Mortality Table for Safety Below-Median 
Healthy Retirees multiplied by 115% for males and 125% 
for females, each with flill generational projection using 
the MP2019 sale was used. 
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Town of Slaughter, Louisiana 
Notes to the Financial Statement 

As and for the Year End June 30, 2021 

For disable lives, the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans 
Mortality Table for Safety Disable Retirees multiplied by 
105% for males and 115% for females, each with full 
generational projection using the MP2019 scale was used. 

For employees, the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans 
Mortality Table for Safety Below^-Median Employees 
multiplied by 115% for males and 125% for females, each 
full generational projecting using the MP2019 scale was 
used. 

Cost of Living Adjustments The present value of future retirement benefits is based on 
benefits currently being paid by the System and includes 
previously granted cost-of-living increases. The present 
vali^s do not include provisions for potential future 
increases not yet authorized by the Board of Trustees. 

The mortality rate assumption used was set based upon an experience study for the period of July 1, 2014 
through June 30, 2019. A change was made full generational mortality which combines the use of a base 
mortality table with appropriate mortality improvement scales. In order to set the base mortality table, 
actual plan mortalit}'^ experience was assigned a credibility weighting and combined with a standard table to 
produce current levels of mortality. 

Best estimates of aritlimetic nominal rates of return for each major asset class included in the System's 
target asset allocation as of June 30, 2021, are summarized in the following table: 

Long-Term 

Expected 

Target Asset Portfolio Real 

Asset Class Allocation RateofRetiffn 

Equity 55.50% 3.47% 

Fixed Income 30.50% 0.59% 

Alternatives 14.00% 1.01% 

Other 0.00% 0.00% 

Totals 100.00% 5.08% 

Inflation 2.22% 

Expected Arithmetic Nominal Rate 7.30% 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.750%. The projection of cash flows used 
to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current 
contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers will be made at the aetuarially 
determined rates approved by PRSAC taking into eonsideration the recommendation of the System's 
actuary. Based on those assumptions, the System's fidueiary net position was projected to be available to 
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Town of Slaughter, Louisiana 
Notes to the Financial Statement 

As and for the Year End June 30, 2021 

make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate 
of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine 
the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Diseount 
Rate. The following presents the net pension liability of the participating employers calculated using the 
discount rate of 6.750%, as well as what the employers' net pension liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower, or one percentage point higher than the current rate 
as of June 30, 2021: 

Current 
1% Decrease DiscoimlRate 1% Increase 

Rates 5.750% 6.750% 7.750% 
TownofSlau^ter Share of NPL $ 47,761 S 27,404 $ 10,413 

Payable to the Pension Plan. At June 30, 2021, the Town reported a payable of $6,468 for outstanding 
contributions to the pension plan required for the year ended June 30, 2021. 

16. Interfund Transfers 

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2021, consisted of the following. The principal purpose of 
the transfers between funds is to fund expenditures associated with those flincE. 
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Town of Slaughter, Louisiana 
Notes to the Financial Statement 

As and for the Year End June 30, 2021 

Tmnsfers In Transfei^ Out 
Geneml Fund 

Streets and Sidewalks S 58,83 i S 
Water 52,000 
Gas 103,000 

Special Revenue Funds 
Streets and Sidewalks 

General Fund - 58,831 
Water 
Gas 

Enteiprise Fund 
Streets and Sidewalks 
General Fund - 155,000 

Total S 213,831 S 213,831 

17. Purchase of Pumper Truck 

On August 18, 2017. the Town of Slaughter entered into a lease purchase agreement for the acquisition of a 
2017 custom pumper truck. The total purchase price w^as S48L984. The acquisition was handled in three 
transactions: 

1) The Slaughter Volunteer Fire Department, Inc., a 501(c)4 organization, received a Pennington 
Foundation grant for $350,000. These funds were used to acquire the truck. 

2) The Slaughter station under the Parish-Wide East Feliciana Fire District umbrella paid $52,923.90 
towar(E the truck. 

3) The remainder of $80,000 owed was financed through a lease purchase agreement with the Towm of 
Slaughter named as the lessee. The lease tenns are yearly payments of $9,862.29 commencing on August 
18, 2018 and ending on August 18, 2027. 

The lease will be paid with the Slaughter station Parish-Wide East Feliciana Fire District account each year 
as the payments are due. A copy of the title was obtained. The purchaser is labeled as the Town of 
Slaughter and the lienholder is Patterson State Bank. The Town has recorded the asset and related capital 
payable on the financial statements. As the payments are made with District funds, the Town will reduce 
the liability and record the payment as revenue. During the fiscal year of June 30, 2021, principal 
payments of $7,207 and interest payments of $2,655 were paid. The Towm recognized $9,862 in capital 
transfers from the Parish-wide Fire District. 
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Town of Slaughter, Louisiana 
Notes to the Financial Statement 

As and for the Year End June 30, 2021 

18. Fund Balances and Net Position 

The General Fund has assigned fund balance for police protection in the amount of $33,858. The 
Restricted fund balance is $142,048. This is restricted due to legislation for sales taxes for streets and 
sidewalks. The unassigned fund balance in the governmental funds is $398,581. The Enterprise Fund had 
restricted net position for customer deposits in the amount of $72,505 and for debt service accounts as 
required by bond covenants in the amount of $188,766. The Enterprise Fund has net position that is 
investment in capital assets net of related debt in the amount of $151,244. The Enterprise Fund has 
unrestricted net position of ($213,456). 

19. On-Behalf Payments 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the State of Louisiana made on behalf payments in the form of 
supplemental pay to the Town's policemen. In accordance with GASB 24, the Town recorded $17,150 of 
on behalf payments as revenue and as an expenditure in the General Fund. 

20. Risk Management 

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to theft, damage, or destruction of assets, torts, 
injuries, natural disasters, and many other unforeseeable events. The Town purchases commercial 
insurance policies and bonds for any and all claims related to the aforementioned risks. The Tomi's 
payment of the insurance policy deductible is the only liability associated with these policies and bonds. 
There has been no significant decrease in insurance coverage fi"om the prior year, and the amount of 
settlements has not exceeded the insurance coverage for the past tliree fiscal years. 
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Town of Slaughter, Louisiana 
Notes to the Financial Statement 

As and for the Year End June 30, 2021 

21. Contingent Liabilities 

At June 30, 2021, the Town was not involved in any outstanding litigation or claims. 

22. Commitments 

The Town received $45,000 in grant funding for new computer equipment. The Town spent $19,832 
during June 30, 2021 and accrued $11,089 at year end for acquisitions. 

23. COVID 19 Pandemic 

In Januaiy^ 2021, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of a novel coronavirus (COVlD-19) 
as a "Public Health Emergency of International Concern," which has spread throughout the world and has 
adversely impacted global commercial activity and contributed to significant declines and volatility in 
financial markets. The outbreak could have a continued material adverse impact on economic and market 
conditions. There continues to be no prediction as to the ultimate material adverse impact of the 
coronavirus outbreak. Nevertheless, the outbreak presents uncertainty and risk witli respect to tlie District 
and its financial results. 
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As and for the Year End June 30, 2021 

24. Subsequent Events 

On June 15, 2021, the Town authorized a resolution to proceed with the issuance of not to exceed 
$1,425,000 of Water Revenue Refunding Bonds. The outstanding bonds will refund in all or a portion 
through the issuance of refunding bon(fe. The agreement is still subject to the approval of the State Bond 
Commission. 

On July 20, 2021, the Town passed resolution 2-2021 change from Plan A to Plan B provisions of the 
Municipal Employees Retirement System of Louisiana. The resolution took effect July 19, 2021. The 
System accepted the boards resolution on August 19, 2021. 

On Marchll, 2021, as a result of COVID-19, the American Rescue Care Plan was signed into law. This 
Plan will provide financial assistance to local municipalities, including the Town, for certain allowable 
expenditures as stated in the Plan. The Town may be eligible for up to $335,086 in financial assistance 
from the Plan. 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through February 23, 2022, the date on which the financial 
statements where available to be issued. No other events were noted that require recording or disclosure in 
the financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. 
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TO\W OF SLAUGHTER, LOUISIANA 
Bl DGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

SCHEDULE 1 

General Fund 

Variance 
REVENUES Budgeted Amoimts Actual Amounts Favorable 

Orieinal Final GAAP Basis fUnfavorable) 
Fines and otlier court costs $ 225,400 S 77,200 $ 120,685 S 43,485 
Franchise fees 70,000 65,000 68,057 3,057 
Interest earned 200 500 304 (196) 

Intergovernmental - - 9,862 9,862 
Oii-behalf payments - - 17,150 17,150 
Licenses and permits 52,500 52,500 48,352 (4,148) 
Otliei 5,000 4,500 3,903 (597) 
Cell phone tower rental 13,050 13,500 13,490 (10) 
Fire District reimbursement 32,488 25,156 (45) (25,201) 
T axes-beer 1,500 1,500 1,359 (141) 
T axes-property 39,700 42,500 40,332 (2,168) 
Taxes-sales 88.000 92.500 100.732 8.232 

Total Revenues 527,838 374,856 424,181 49,325 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 279,260 272,956 275,837 (2,881) 
Public safetx^: -

Police 276,395 281,820 294,877 (13,057) 
File 111,710 74.937 77,277 (2,340) 

Public works - - - -
Debt service - - - -
Lease Payments - - 9,862 (9,862) 
Capital outlay - 133.000 60,255 72,745 

Total Expenditures S 667.365 762,713 $ 718,108 $ 44,605 

Deficiency of Revenues 
over Expenditmes Before 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) S (139,527) S(387,857) $ (293,927) $ 93,930 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES tUSESl 
Grants and otlier contributions - 140,000 140,000 -
Proceeds from lease - - - -
Operating transfers, net 185.000 185.000 96.169 (88,831) 

Net Other Fmancmg Sources (Uses) 185,000 325,000 236,169 (88,831) 

Change in Fund Balances 45,473 (62,857) (57,758) 5,099 

Fund Balances, beginning 432.439 432,439 490.197 _ 

Fund Balances, ending S 477,912 S 369.582 $ 432,439 $ 5,099 

See Independent Auditor's Report 
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SCHEDULE 2 

TOW OF SLAUGHTER, LOUISIANA 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Special Revenue Fund 

Streets and Sidewalks 

REWNUES 

T axes-sales 

EXPENDITURES 

General government 

Public safety: 

Police 

File 

Public works 

Debt seivice 

Lease Payments 

Capital outlay 

Variance 
Actual Amounts Favorable 

GAAP Basis (Uufavorable) 

80,000 $ 80,000 $ 78,173 $ (L827) 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final 

Total Revenues 80,000 80,000 

55,150 26,152 

6,400 
Total E^enditures $ 55,150 $ 32,552 

Deficiency of Revenues 

over E^enditiires Before 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 24,850 $ 47,448 $ 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Grants and otlier contrfciitions 

Proceeds from lease 

Operating transfers, net 

Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Chan^ in Fund Balances 

Fund Balances, begiiming 

Fund Balances, ending 

6,400 

6,400 

24,850 

52,762 

53,848 

52,762 

77,612 $ 106,610 $ 

78,173 

45,764 

[,954 

58,831 

58,831 

89,286 

52,762 

142,048 $ 

(L827) 

(19,612) 

4.446 

47,718 $ (15,166) 

30,455 $ (16,993) 

(6,400) 

58,831 

52,431 

35,438 

35,438 

See Independent Auditor's Report 
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SCHEDULE 3.1 
TOWs OF SLAUGHTER, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDLXE OF EMPLOYER'S PROPORHONAIE SHARE OF NET PENSION IIABILIIY - MERS A 
YEARS ENDED JUNX 30. 2021 

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 
EmployeTs Proportion of die Net Pension Lkbility (.^^set) 0.040621% 0.039968% 0.038540% 0.085780% 0.084609% 0.073432% 

Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) $ 166,945 $ 167.203 5 i 159,582 ! i 358,446 $ 365,799 $ 202,251 

Eniptoyer's Coveied-Eiiiptoyee Payroll $ 109,453 S 119,784 J > 70,364 i i 158.201 $ 16L714 $ 145.406 

Eniptoyer's Proportionate Sliaie of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) as a 
Percentage of its Coveied-Emptoyee PayjoU 

152.53% 139.59% 226.79% 226.58% 226.20% 140.47% 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as Percentage of tlie Total Pension Liability 62.11% 62.49% 65.60% 66.14% 64.52% 77.82% 

* The amounts presented for each f^cal year were determined as of 6/30 within tlie fiscal year. 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will I >e displayed as they become as'ailable 

SCHEDULE 3.2 
TOWN OF SLAUGHTER, LOUISL4NA 

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER'S PROPORHONATE SH4RE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY - MPERS 
Y'EARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 
Eniployer's Proportion of tlie Net Pension LiaOilicy (Asset) 

Eiiipbyer's Propoitionate Sliaie of tlie Net Pension Liability (Asset) 

Einployer's Coveied-Einployee Payix)!] 

Eniptoyer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Lkbility (Asset) as a 
Peixrentage of its C^vered-Eir^iloyee Payroll 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as Percentage of the Total Pension Lkbility 

D.013555% 0.001170% 

$127,049 $10,215 $ 

$1,971 $ - $ 

15.46% 0.00% 

0.000000% 0.000000% 0.000000% 0.514100% 

S - S - $ 27.404 

S - $ - $ 30,446 

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 90.01% 

70.08% 71.89% 71.01% 70.' 

* The amounts presented for each f^cal year were determined as of 6/30 within tlie fiscal year. 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they- become a\'aiJable 

See hidependent Auditor's Report. 



SCHEDULE 4.1 

TOWN OF SLAUGHTER, LOITSUNA 

Schedule of the Town's Contributions - MERS PLAN A 

Last 10 fiscal Years 

Municipal Polke Employees' Retkement System 

CoiiTractnall}' required contribution 

Contributioos in relation to contractually required contnbutions 

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

2016 
2L617 

21,617 

2017 2018 2019 
27,191 

27,191 

17,415 S 4L132 

17,415 41.132 

2020 
42,046 
42,046 

2021 
42,895 

Employer's Covered Employee PayToll 

Contributions as a % of Covered Empbyee Payroll 

109,453 

7,190031. 99 

70,364 158,201 161,714 145,406 

24.7500% 26.0000% 26.0000% 29.5002% 

Scherlide is iviended lo skQwinfornmnon for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available 

TOWS OF SLAI GHER, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of the Town's Contributions - MPE^ 

Last 10 Fiscal Years 

SCHEDULE 

Municipal Emptoyees' Retrement System 

Contractualh' required contribution 

Contributions in relation to contractually required contributions 

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

2016 2017 
779 
779 

2018 2019 2020 2021 
10,282 
9.905 
377 

Employer's Covered Employee PayioE 

Contriiutions as a % of Covered Employee PayToU 

1.971 

32.5117% 

Sdiedule is intended lo show information for Id years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available 

See Independent Auditor's Report. 
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SCHEDULE 5 
TOWN OF SLAUGHTER, LOITSLANA 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEIDLE 
CHANGES IN F11ST> NTT POSITION 

WATER UTILITY SYSTEM 
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Actual Ainoimts 
OPERATING RE\TNUES Budaet GAAP Basis Variance 

Sales $ 350,200 $ 367,493 S (17,293) 

Penalties 6,500 7,713 (1,213) 

Instalktions - 500 (500) 
Intergovernmental - 1,464 (1,464) 

Giant fiinds 35,000 - 35.000 

Total Operating Revenues 391,700 377,169 14,531 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

Bad debts - 2.799 (2,799) 
Depreciation - 87,736 (87,736) 

Salaries 64,000 64,697 (697) 

Payroll taxes 5,000 4,766 234 

Enipbyee benefits 32,635 26,383 6,252 

Grant expendituies 35,000 - 35,000 

Insurance 13,750 13,092 658 

Supplies 21,360 22,630 (1,270) 

Repaiis and rrmintenance 800 524 276 
Auto e>q)ense 2,500 846 1,654 

Telephone 310 111 199 
Utilities 13,540 14,195 (655) 

Contiact labor 5,930 - 5,930 
Professional Fees 29,300 30,807 (1,507) 

DHH Bond Fees 6,302 6,303 (1) 

Otlier 4,894 10.495 (5,601) 

Total Opeiating E^enses 235,321 285,384 (50,063) 

Operating Income (Loss) 156,379 91,785 64,594 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 

Interest income 250 299 (49) 
Interest e?q)ense (43,487) (43,487) (0) 

Total Non-Operating Revenues (E.^qjenses) (43,237) (43,188) (49) 

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS 113,142 48,598 64,544 

Opeiating tiansfers, net (82,000) (52,000) (30,000) 

Chan^ in Net Position 31,142 (3.402) 34,544 

Total Net Position, beginning 260,716 260,716 -

TotalNet Position, ending S 291,858 S 257.314 S 34,544 

See independent auditor's repoil. 
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SCHEDULE 6 

TOWN OF SLAUGHTER, LOUISIANA 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEUDLE 
CHANGES IN FUNT) NET POSITION 

GAS UTILITY SYSTEM 
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Actual Amounts 
OPERATING REVENUES Bud^t GAAP Basis Varknce 

Sales ? S 372,900 S 385,023 $ (12.123) 

Penalties - - -
Installations 2,100 2,100 -
Intergovernmental - 1.464 (1,464) 

Miscellaneous - 3,143 (3.143) 

Total Operating Revenues 375,000 391,730 (16,730) 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

Bad debts - 1.008 (1,008) 
Natural Gas 67,000 78,042 (11.042) 

Depreciation 2.474 (2,474) 

Salaries 64,500 64,165 335 
PawoU taxes 5.000 4.726 274 

Employee benefits 31,779 26,491 5,288 
Insiuance 12,850 9,988 2,862 
Supplies 4.000 5.496 (1,496) 

Repairs and maintenance 800 523 277 
Auto ejqiense 1.900 1.731 169 
Telephone 310 71 239 

Utilities 1.600 1.679 (79) 
Contract labor 12,600 2,382 10,218 

Professional fees 5.000 - 5,000 

Otlier 3,730 3,256 474 

T otal Operating Expenses 211,069 202,032 9.037 

Operating Income (Loss) 163,931 189,698 (25.767) 

NON-OPERATING REAENUES fEXPENSES) 

Inteiest income 17 17 (0) 
Interest e}q)ense - - -

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 17 17 (0) 

INCOME (LOSSi BEFORE TRANSFERS 163.948 189.716 (25,768) 

Operating transfers, net (103.000) (103,000) -

Chan^ in Net Positkui 60.948 86.716 (25,768) 

Total Net Position, beginning (138.156) (138.156) -

Total Net Position, ending 5 ; (77.208) $ (51.440) $ (25,768) 

See independent auditor's report. 
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SCHEDULE 7 
TO\¥N or SLAUGHTER, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION PAID TO GOVERNING MEMBERS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

This schedule of compensation paid to governing members is presented in compliance with House 
Concurrent Resolution No. 54 of the 1979 Session of the Louisiana Legislature. 

Mayor 
Janis Landry S 7,381 

Boai^ Memben; 
Men Hobgood S 2,040 
Steve Rader 2,040 
Mona Almond 2,040 
Shelia Fletcher 2,040 
Michelle Harris 2.040 

Total Paid S 10.200 

See Independent Auditor's Report 
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SCHEDULE 
TOWN OF SLAUGHTER, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION , BENEFITS AND 
OTHER PAYMENTS TO AGENCY HEAD 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Agency Head 
Janis Landry 
Mayor 

Pmpose Amount 
Salary 
FICA 

T otal Compensation, Benefits and Other Payments 

s 7,381 
565 

s 7,946 

See Independent Auditor's Report 
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SCHEDULE 9 

OF SLAUGHTER, LA 

Justice System FuncUug Schedule - CoUecting/Disbursing Entity 

As Required by Act 87 of the 2020 Regular Legislath'e Session 

Cash Basis Presentation 

Beginning Balance of Amounts CoUected (i.e. cash on hand) 

Add: Collections 

Criroinal Fines - Otiier 

Subtotal CoUections 

Less: Dbbursements To Governments & Nonprofits: {Must inchide one agency name anc 
one collection type on each line and may require multiple lines for the same agency if more 
than one collection type is applicable. Additional rows may be added as necessary. ) 

La Commission on Law Enforcement-law Enforcement Officer Training 

Treasurer-State of LA-Trial Court Moiiogement Informaiton System (CMIS) 

LA Snprenient Court-Judicial College 

Traumatic Head and Spinal Court Injuries Services 

Feliciana Jtrvenile Justice District 

Slaughter Volunteer Fire Department 

Less: Amounts Retained by CoUectii^ Agency 

Second Sis 
First Six Month Period 

Month Period Ended 

Ended 12/31/20 06/30/2021 

65.132 

65,132 

212 

126 

85 

440 

260 

208 

54.911 

54,911 

L151 

588 

295 

2,065 

2,944 

2,348 

Amoimt Self Disbursed Criminal Fiiies-Olhei- 63.801 45.520 

Less: Disbursements to In^iduals/3rd Party Collection or Processing Agencies 

Subtotal Dis burse ments/Retainase 65.132 

Total: Endii^ Balance of Amounts Collected but not Dbbursed/Retained (Le. cash on hand) $ 

54.911 

See iiKiependent auditor's report. 
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Mincfa (B. Bourn 

820 11"^ Avenue 
Franklinton, Louisiana 70438 

(985) 839-4413 
Fax (985) 839-4402 

wrcpa@Jiuntbrothers.com 
Member 

AICPA LCPA 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

The Honorable Robert Jackson, Mayor 
And Members of the Board of Aldermen 
PO Box 293 
Slaughter, LA 

I have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to tinancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fiind, and the aggregate remaining fmid infoimation of 
the Town of Slaughter, State of Louisiana, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Slaughter's basic financial 
statements and have issued our report thereon (Hted February 22, 2022 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing my audit of the financial statements, I considered the Town of Slaughter's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to deteimine the aiMit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circmnstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Slaughter's internal 
control. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Slaughter's internal 
control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when tlie design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 
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My consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during my audit I did not identify any 
deficiencies in intemal control that I consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Slaughter's financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, I performed tests of its compliance with eertain provisions of laws, 
regulations, eontracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on complianee 
with those provisions was not an objective of my audit, and accordingly, I do not express such an opinion. 
The results of my tests diselosed instances of noncomphance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the aceompanying schedule of 
findings and responses as items 2021-001 and 2021-002. 

Town of Slaughter's Response to Findings 

Town of Slaughter's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and responses. Town of Slaughter's response was not subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the finaneial statements and, accordingly, I express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of my testing of intemal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in aecordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's intemal eontrol and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Minda Rayboum CPA 

Franklinton, LA 

February 22, 2022 
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TOWN OF SLAUGHTER, LOLTSIANA 
SCHEDULE OF CURRENT YEAR FINIDNGS AND RESPONSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Summary of Auditor's Report 

Financial Statements 

A. Type of auditor's report issued Unmodified 

B. Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

Internal Control Significant Deficiencies? No 
Material Wealaiesses? No 

Noncompliance Material to Financial Statements? Yes 

Federal and Questioned Costs Related to Major Federal Award Programs 

Not applicable. 

Other Matters 

A management letter was not issued. 
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TOWN OF SLAUGHTER, LOLTSIANA 
SCHEDULE OF CURRENT YEAR FINIDNGS AND RESPONSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Finding 2020-001 Noncompliance with Local Government Budget Act 

CONDITION: The special revenue fund (street and sidewalk fund) expenditures were over budget 47% 
or $15,166. 

CRITERIA: Per R.S. 39:1311 (Local Government Budget Act), the governing authority must adopt a 
budget amendment if there is a 5% or greater shortage in revenue or a 5% or greater overage in 
expenditures if there is a 5% or greater variance in the actual fund balmice at the beginning of the year. 
This applies to the entity's general fund and special revenue funds 

CAUSE OF CONDITION: \^diile the Town did amend its general fund and special revenue fund 
budgets, expenditures and other uses were over the legal threshold of 5%. In addition, it appears a budget 
message was not prepared. 

POTENTIAL EFFECT OF CONDITION: Noncompliance with the Local Government Budget Aet. 

RECOMMENDATION: The Town needs to ensure its amended expenditures and revenues are within 
the 5% requirement before the year ends. 

CLIENT RESPONSE: We agree with the auditor's recommendation. 

CONTACT PERSON: Janis Landry, Mayor, 3377 Church Street, Slaughter, LA 70777, (225) 654-4278 

Finding 2020-002 Filing of Federal Payroll Reports 

CONDITION: The employer's quarterly federal tax return for quarters (form 941) ending March 31 2021 
and June 30, 2021 were not filed. 

CRITERIA: The employer's quarterly federal tax return is due every quarter or every three months. 

CAUSE OF CONTRITION: The reports were not filed timely. 

POTENTIAL EFFECT OF CONDITION: The Internal Revenue Seivdce will assess penalties for non
filing or late filing of employer's quarterly federal tax returns. 

RECOMMENDATION: The Town needs to put procedures in place to ensure the timely filing of the 
quarterly federal tax return. The quarterly deadlines need to be noted on calendars and mailing of the 
returns wdth certified return receipt or electronic filing of the returns. 

CLIENT RESPONSE : We agree with the auditor's recommendation. 

CONTACT PERSON: Janis Landry, Mayor, 3377 Church Street, Slaughter, LA 70777, (225) 654-4278. 

79 



TOWN OF SLAUGHTER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

INTERNAL CONTROL FINDINGS 

Finding 2021-001 Customer Meter Deposits 

CONDITION: Meter deposits that are in the town's utility billing system are not being reconciled 
liabilities reflected on the town's accounting records. 

CRITERIA: Customer meter deposits are recorded on the accounting system as a liability. The utility 
billing system as part of the town's internal controls has a report that details the customer deposits for 
each account for water and gas customers. Both the report per the utility billing system and the general 
ledger should be reconciled for these deposits. 

CAUSE OF CONDITION; Lack of internal controls over customer deposits. 

POTENTIAL EFFECT OF CONDITION: If the town's utility customer deposits are not reconciled, there 
will be discrepancies between the accounting and utility billing system. 

RECOMMENDATION: The town should reconcile the utility billing system and accounting system for 
customer deposits to ensure customer deposits paid and refunded and customer deposit liabilities are 
balanced. 

CLIENT RESPONSE: We agree with the auditor's recommendation. 

STATUS: Resolved. 

COMPLIANCE FINDINGS 

FINDING 2021-002 PubHc Bid Law 

CONDITION: The town purchased three police vehicles. Two were purchased on state contract. One 
vehicle was purchased for $34,010.00. The vehicle was not purchased on state contract nor publicly bid. 

CRITERIA; The provisions of the public bid law, R.S. Title 38:2211-2296, state that 

A) All public works purchases exceeding $250,000 must be publicly bid. 

B) All material and supply purchases exceeding $30,000 must be publicly bid. 

There are exceptions for certain purchases of materials and supplies. These exceptions include: 

• purchases off the State Contract under cooperative purchasing agreements; RS. 38:2212.1(F) 

• purchases of surplus materials and supplies from another public entity or the government of the United 
States or if the particular transaction is governed by the procurement code; R.S. 38:2212.1(D) 

• purchases off of the Federal General Sendees Administration Lists, provided that the items are not 
othenvise av*ailable cheaper on State Contract and the public entity utilizes a Louisiana licensed dealer or 
distributor; R.S. 38;2212.1(E) 

• purchases by hospitals sendee distriets under qualified group purchasing organizations; 
R.S.38:2212.1(G) 
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TOWN OF SLAUGHTER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

• purchases of used fire and emergency response vehicles, including associated equipment, with a per 
unit purchase cost of less than one hundred thousand dollars; R.S. 38:2238, et seq. 

• lease, rental, or purchases of telecommunications data processing systems, including equipment, and 
related services, by political subdivisions through a request for proposals; R.S. 38:2237 

• purehases of materials, equipment and supplies by school districts and schools through a qualified 
group purchasing organization; R.S. 38:2212.1(N) 

• purchase of materials, supplies, vehicles or equipment by the State, any levee distriet, levee drainage 
district, municipality, parish or other politieal subdivision of the state through an existing public contract 
of another political subdivision within one year of the opening of bids; R.S. 38:321.1; and 

• purchases of animals trained to perform special task, including but not limited to narcotics detection, 
bomb detection, arson investigation, and rescue techniques by: Any local law enforcement agency for the 
principal purpose of aiding in the detection of criminal activity, enforcement of laws, or apprehension of 
offenders, and Any loeal public safety agency for the purpose of search and rescue sendees 

CAUSE OF CONDITION: Lack of miderstanding of the state public bid law and lack of controls over 
purchases subject to the state public bid law. 

POTENTIAL EFFECT OF CONDITION; Noncompliance with state public bid law. 

RECOMMENDATION: Management needs to review the polieies and procedures in place regarding 
contracts and purchasing. Management needs to incorporate into its financial policies and procedures 
controls over purchases subject to public bid law. 

CLIENT RESPONSE: We agree wdth the auditor's recommendations. 

STATUS: Resolved. 

FINDING 2021-003 Compliance with Bond Agreement Terms 

CONDITION: The Tov,ii had a net revenue ratio of 92.55% on the debt for the water system. 

CRITERIA: The General Bond ordinance contains a rate covenant by whieh the Town has agreed to 
maintain its water rates at a level that will provide net revenues of the system equal to at least 120% of 
annual debt service on the bonds. 

CAUSE OF CONDITION: The Town's water fund had a loss for the fiscal yem- of ($131,716). 

POTENTIAL EFFECT OF CONDITION: Noncompliance with the Town's bond agreement. 

RECOMMENDATION: The Town should consider a rate study for all utilities to ensure that the Town's 
revenue will cover the utility expense and to ensure the bond covenants are complied with. 

CLIENT RESPONSE: We agree with the auditor's recommendation. 

STATUS: Resolved. 
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TOWN OF SLAUGHTER, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

Finding 2021-004 Compliance with Local Government Budget Act 

CONDITION: The general fund expenditures and other financing uses were over budget by 9.54% or 
$72,546. The street and side walk fund (special revenue fund) expenditures and other financing uses were 
over budget by 18.34% or $37,289. 

The Town also did not provide the budget message that must accompany the proposed budget. 

CRITERIA : Per R.S. 39:1311 (Local Government Budget Act), the governing authority must adopt a 
budget amendment if there is a 5% or greater shortage in revenue or a 5% or greater overage in 
expenditures if there is a 5% or greater variance in the actual fund balance at the beginning of the year. 
This applies to the entity's general fund and special revenue funds. 

The Act also requires a budget message that is signed and that contains the following: 

-a summary of description of the proposed financial plan, policies, and objectives, assumptions, budgetary 
basis, and, 

-a discussion of the most important features. 

CAUSE OF CONDITION: While the Town did amend its general fund and special revenue fund 
budgets, expenditures and other uses were over the legal tlireshold of 5%. In addition, it appears a biMget 
message was not prepared. 

POTENTIAL EFFECT OF CONDITION: Noncompliance with the Local Goveimnent Budget Act. 

RECOMMENDATION: The Town needs to ensure its amended expenditures and revenues are within 
the 5% requirement before the year ends. In addition, it must incorporate a budget message with the 
prepare proposed budget. 

CLIENT RESPONSE: We agree with the auditor's recommendation. 

STATUS: Partially resolved. 
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